
NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 

 
Meeting of the 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

DECEMBER 17, 2007 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Submitted By 

      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


 

 

 -  -  

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are suggested or 
requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible 
amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by department 
directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight 
and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the governing 
body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on course with these 
goals. 
 

Goals 

 
I. Enhance the livability and safety of the community  
II. Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City 

government 
III. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
IV. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally 
V. Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs 
VI. Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual strategic 

planning process 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your deliberations may 
require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 



NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of 
the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  AGENDA 

December 17, 2007 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Jerry Hines – Woodside Bible 

Church 1 

ROLL CALL 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Special Tribute to the City of Troy from State Representative Marty 
Knollenberg and State Senator John Pappageorge – Safest City in Michigan ..... 1 

b) Service Commendation – David Waller ................................................................ 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Request for Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – Seco 
Tools, Inc., 2805 Bellingham, Troy MI 48083 1 

C-2 Request to Consider Granting an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) 
to Seco Tools, Inc., 2805 Bellingham, Troy MI 48083 2 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


 

 

 -  -  

C-3 Rezoning Application – Proposed Rite Aid Pharmacy Development, North Side of 
Long Lake, East Side of Rochester Road, Section 11 – B-1 to B-2 (File Number Z-
729) 3 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

D-1 Alcohol Sales on Golf Courses 3 

D-2 Appointments to Boards and Committees 4 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 4 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 5 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Planning 
Commission 5 

E-2  Bid Waiver – Purchase of Additional In-Car Video Systems 6 

E-3  Traffic Committee Recommendations – November 28, 2007 6 

E-4 Addendum #1 to Charnwood Hills Phase 1 Chip Seal Contract 07-4 for 
Charnwood Phase 2 Chip Seal 7 

E-5 Rejection of Bids for Contract 07-9 – Weir Control Structure Project – Section 4 8 

E-6 Proposed City of Troy Precinct Boundary Alterations and Relocations 8 

E-7 Limousine Permit Revocation Appeal – Nautical Mile Transportation 10 

E-8 Goodman Investments, LLC 11 

CONSENT AGENDA: 11 

F-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 11 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 12 



 

 

 -  -  

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 12 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 12 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 12 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 07-8 – 
Square Lake, Livernois to Rochester and John R at Mt. Vernon Water Main 
Replacement – Project No. 06.503.5 and 07.503.5............................................ 12 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Architectural 
Services for the Troy Museum and Historic Village ............................................ 12 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: US Communities Cooperative Purchasing 
Program – Landscape Structures, Inc. ............................................................... 13 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Audit 
Services .............................................................................................................. 13 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Oakland County Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles ............................................................ 13 

F-5 Acceptance of Fireman’s Fund Insurance Company Grant 14 

F-6 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement 14 

F-7 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement for John R Road Improvements, 
Square Lake Road to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #33 –
Sidwell #88-20-02-427-007 – Kinette A. Bayliss 14 

F-8 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement for John R Road Improvements, 
Square Lake Road to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #68B –
Sidwell #88-20-01-151-047 – Mark and Elizabeth Abro 15 

F-9 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Right-of-Way and a Permanent 
Easement for Water Main, Section 21 – Sidwell #88-20-21-426-012 – ESC 
Associates, LLC 15 

F-10 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Right-of-Way and a Permanent 
Easement for Water Main, Section 21 – Sidwell #88-20-21-426-009 – Livernois 
Properties, LLC 15 

F-11 Request for Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit, John 
R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 
02.204.5 – Parcel #76 – Sidwell #88-20-01-108-018 – Hana Rrapi 16 



 

 

 -  -  

F-12 Allocation of 2008 Tri-Party Program Funds for County Road Improvements in 
Troy 16 

F-13 Kocenda v. Troy et. al. 16 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 17 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 17 

G-2 Green Memorandums: None Submitted 17 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 17 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 17 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 17 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 17 

REPORTS: 17 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 17 

a) Historic District Study Committee/Final – September 4, 2007 ............................ 17 
b) Youth Council/Final – September 26, 2007 ........................................................ 17 
c) Election Commission/Final – October 1, 2007 ................................................... 17 
d) Historic District Study Committee/Final – October 2, 2007 ................................. 17 

e) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – November 1, 2007 ................... 17 
f) Historic District Study Committee/Final – November 6, 2007 ............................. 17 
g) Planning Commission/Final – November 13, 2007 ............................................ 17 
h) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – November 20, 2007 ........................................ 17 

i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – November 27, 2007 ...................... 17 
j) Youth Council/Draft – November 28, 2007 ......................................................... 17 
k) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – December 4, 2007........................ 17 

l) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – December 6, 2007 ................... 17 
m) Election Commission/Draft – December 7, 2007 ................................................ 17 

J-2 Department Reports: 17 

a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of November, 2007 ... 17 
b) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – November 30, 2007 ............................. 17 



 

 

 -  -  

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 17 

a) Letter of Thanks to Mayor Schilling from Bob Ottaway, President Bloomfield 
Woods Condominium Association Regarding the Assistance Received from 
the Troy Fire Department ................................................................................... 17 

b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Nelson from Thomas Burke Regarding the 
Outstanding Service Provided by Lt. Janusz Bora ............................................. 17 

c) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Beatrice Smits Regarding the 
Compassion and Support Received from the Troy Police Department and 
Legal Staff .......................................................................................................... 17 

d) Letter of Thanks to Bill Huotari from Tim and Anna Backers Regarding the 
Assistance from Jennifer Lawson and the Engineering Staff during the 
Widening of Crooks Road .................................................................................. 17 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 18 

J-5  Calendar 18 

J-6  Communication from Alexia Gallaher, NFL Youth Football Fund Regarding a 
Grant of $1,000.00 to Troy Parks and Recreation for the 2007 NFL Local Agency 
Grant Program 18 

J-7  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 
the Re-greening of Troy Program 18 

J-8  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 
Civic Center Priority Task Force Development Update 18 

STUDY ITEMS: 18 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 18 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 18 

CLOSED SESSION: 18 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 18 

ADJOURNMENT 18 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 19 



 

 

 -  -  

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 19 

Monday, January 7, 2008 Regular City Council .................................................... 19 
Monday, January 28, 2008 Regular City Council .................................................. 19 

Monday, February 4, 2008 Regular City Council ................................................... 19 
Wednesday, February 13, 2008 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council . 19 
Monday, February 18, 2008 Regular City Council ................................................. 19 
Wednesday, February 20, 2008 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council . 19 
Monday, March 3, 2008 Regular City Council ....................................................... 19 

Monday, March 17, 2008 Regular City Council ..................................................... 19 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 17, 2007 

 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Jerry Hines – Woodside Bible 

Church 

ROLL CALL  

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming 
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

 
(b) Excuse Absent Council Members 
 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 

a) Special Tribute to the City of Troy from State Representative Marty Knollenberg and 
State Senator John Pappageorge – Safest City in Michigan  

b) Service Commendation – David Waller 
 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Request for Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – Seco 

Tools, Inc., 2805 Bellingham, Troy MI 48083 

 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for Seco Tools, Inc., for property known as 2805 Bellingham, Troy, MI 48083, Parcel # 
88-20-26-200-088, in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2006-06-238; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
forward a copy of this resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 17, 2007 

 

- 2 - 

Yes: 
No: 

 

C-2 Request to Consider Granting an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) 

to Seco Tools, Inc., 2805 Bellingham, Troy MI 48083  

 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the Troy City Council on December 17, 2007 
established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 2805 Bellingham, 
Troy, MI. 48083, Parcel # 88-20-26-200-088;  
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by Seco Tools, Inc., for an Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 2805 Bellingham, Troy, MI. 48083, for 
twelve (12) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on December 17, 
2007, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 
possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Seco 
Tools, Inc., at 2805 Bellingham, Troy, MI. 48083 may have the effect of substantially impeding 
the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE GRANTING 
of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Seco Tools, Inc., at 2805 Bellingham, 
Troy, MI. 48083 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of Troy or the other 

taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City of Troy, or the other 
taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Seco Tools, Inc., at 2805 Bellingham, 
Troy, MI, 48083, Parcel #88-20-26-200-088, for personal property for a term of twelve (12) 

years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy 
and Seco Tools, Inc., in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Seco Tools, Inc., a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Clerk to 
complete the Application and transmit same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, 
P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 17, 2007 

 

- 3 - 

C-3 Rezoning Application – Proposed Rite Aid Pharmacy Development, North Side of 

Long Lake, East Side of Rochester Road, Section 11 – B-1 to B-2 (File Number Z-

729) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City is in receipt of a rezoning request, from B-1 to B-2, File Number Z-729, 
as demonstrated by the Ordinance to amend Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy;  
 
WHEREAS, The application is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan, and is compatible 
with surrounding zoning districts and land uses; and 
 
WHEREAS, The rezoning is recommended for approval by the Planning Commission; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed 
rezoning from B-1 to B-2; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Zoning District Map. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Alcohol Sales on Golf Courses 

 
Pending Resolution  
Resolution 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS staff to pursue options to allow alcohol 
to be sold on the golf courses; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council DIRECTS staff to prepare addendums to 
the agreements with Kosch Special Events, LLC and Gallatin, Inc. (Camp Ticonderoga) that 
would allow alcohol sales on the golf courses.  
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 17, 2007 

 

- 4 - 

 

D-2 Appointments to Boards and Committees 

 

(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person(s) to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 11/01/09 

  
 Unexpired Term 11/01/09 

  
 Unexpired Term 11/01/09 

 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 

 
 Term Expires 11/01/10 

 
 Term Expires 11/01/10 

 

Charter Revision Committee  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 04/30/09 

 

Ethnic Issues Advisory Board  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular) – 2 & 3 Year Terms 

 
 Unexpired Term 09/30/08 (3 Year Term) 

 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 17, 2007 

 

- 5 - 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 10“E” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 

 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 10 “E”.  

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Planning 

Commission      

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceeds the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 

(a)  Mayoral Appointments   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Planning Commission 
Appointed by  Mayor (9-Regular) –  3-Year Terms 

 

 Unexpired Term 12/31/08 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 17, 2007 

 

- 6 - 

 Term Expires 12/31/10 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-2  Bid Waiver – Purchase of Additional In-Car Video Systems 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, On Monday, October 16, 2006, Troy City Council approved a contract to purchase 
digital in-car video systems from International Police Technologies at an estimated cost of 
$291,000.00 (CC Resolution #2006-10-392 – Item F-2);  
 
WHEREAS, Additional digital in-car video systems are needed to replace outdated technology 
to complete the final phase of the project; and  
 
WHEREAS, International Police Technologies has offered General Services Administration 
(GSA) contract pricing contained in GSA-FSS Contract GS-07-9906H for the equipment;   
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 

procedures and APPROVES a contract to purchase twelve (12) additional digital in-car video 
systems including hardware and software from International Police Technologies for an 
estimated total cost of $67,068.00.     
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-3  Traffic Committee Recommendations – November 28, 2007 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

(a) Installation of  NO PARKING/STOPPING/STANDING Signs on the East Side of Jack 

Street between the driveway of 2187 Lancer and the corner of Jack and Lancer 

Drive, and on Lancer between 2175 Lancer and Jack    
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. ___________ be ISSUED for the installation of two 
signs indicating “NO PARKING/ STOPPING/STANDING 8:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. School Days 
Only” on the east side of Jack Street between the driveway of 2187 Lancer and the corner of 
Jack and Lancer Drive, and on Lancer between 2175 Lancer and Jack. 
 

(b) Removal of YIELD Signs on Scone at High Oaks and Installation of YIELD Signs 

on High Oaks at Scone    



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 17, 2007 

 

- 7 - 

 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #86-15-SS be RESCINDED to allow removal of YIELD 
signs on Scone at High Oaks; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for the 
installation of YIELD signs on High Oaks at Scone. 
 

(c) Installation of NO STOPPING/STANDING/PARKING Signs along Northfield 

Parkway between Durand and Long Lake    
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for the installation of NO 
STOPPING/STANDING/PARKING signs along Northfield Parkway between Durand and Long 
Lake. 
 

(d) Installation of Pavement Markings on Northfield Parkway    
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for the pavement 
markings on Northfield Parkway to facilitate two through lanes and one center two-way left turn 
lane in the vicinity of Troy High School.  
 

(e) Establishment of Fire Lanes at 1101 Rochester Road  
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for the establishment of 
fire lanes at 1101 Rochester Road, as shown in the attached sketch. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-4 Addendum #1 to Charnwood Hills Phase 1 Chip Seal Contract 07-4 for Charnwood 

Phase 2 Chip Seal 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Addendum #1 to Contract No. 07-4, 
Charnwood Hills Phase 1 Chip Seal, to Pavement Recycling, Inc., 210 S. Blacks Corners Rd., 
Imlay City, MI 48444, at an estimated total cost of $233,600.00 for Phase 2 Charnwood Chip 
Seal; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 

requirements, and if additional work is required, Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES such 
additional work in an amount not to exceed 25% of the total project cost. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 17, 2007 

 

- 8 - 

 

E-5 Rejection of Bids for Contract 07-9 – Weir Control Structure Project – Section 4 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS all bids for contract No. 07-9, Section 4 
Weir Control Structure Project, opened November 27, 2007 due to all bids exceeding the 
engineer’s estimate.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-6 Proposed City of Troy Precinct Boundary Alterations and Relocations 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the City of Troy alterations of precinct 
boundaries and relocation polling locations as follows: 
 

PCT # BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION POLLING LOCATION 

1 
Section 1  Evanswood Church of God 

2601 E. Square Lake  

2 
Section 2 in the Troy School District Kensington Community Church 

1825 E. Square Lake 

3 
Sections 2, 3 and 4 in the Avondale 
School District 

Woodside Bible Church 
6600 Rochester  

4 
Sections 3, 4 and 5 in the Troy School 
District 

St. Elizabeth Ann Seton Catholic Church 
280 E. Square Lake 

5 
Sections 5 and 6 in the Avondale 
School District  

Woodside Bible Church 
6600 Rochester 

6 
Section 6 in the Troy School District Nature Center 

6685 Coolidge Hwy. 

7 
Section 7 in the Troy School District 
and Section 8 west of Coolidge 
Highway 

St. Stephen Episcopal Church 
5500 Adams 

8 
Section 8 east of Coolidge Highway Northfield Hills Baptist Church 

1800 W. Long Lake 

9 
Sections 9 & 10 St. Elizabeth Ann Seton Catholic Church 

280 E. Square Lake 

10 
Section 11 Kensington Community Church 

1825 E. Square Lake 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 17, 2007 

 

- 9 - 

PCT # BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION POLLING LOCATION 

11 
Section 12 north of Highbury, east of 
Harbor, north of Willard, north and east 
of English  

Evanswood Church of God 
2601 E. Square Lake  

12 
Section 12 south of Highbury, west of 
Harbor, south of Willard, south and 
west of English 

Fire & Police Training Center 
4850 John R 

13 
Section 13 Bethesda Romanian Pentecostal Church 

2075 E. Long Lake 

14 
Section 14 St. Anastasia Catholic Church 

4571 John R 

15 
Section 15 St. Lucy Catholic Croatian Church 

200 E. Wattles 

16 
Section 16 east of I-75 and Section 21 
east of I-75 

First Presbyterian Church 
4328 Livernois 

17 
Section 16 west of I-75 and Section 17  St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox Church 

760 W. Wattles 

18 
Section 18 in the Troy School District  St. Stephen Episcopal Church 

5500 Adams 

19 
Sections 19 and 30 in the Troy School 
District  

St. Alan Catholic Church 
3077 Glouchester 

20 
Section 20 and Section 21 west of I-75  St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox Church 

760 W. Wattles 

21 
Section 22 St. Lucy Catholic Croatian Church 

200 E. Wattles 

22 
Section 23 St. Anastasia Catholic Church 

4571 John R 

23 
Section 24 St. Joseph Chaldean Catholic Church 

2442 E. Big Beaver 

24 
Sections 25 and 26 in the Warren 
Consolidated School District 

St. George Antiochian Orthodox Church 
2160 E. Maple 

25 
Sections 35 and 36 in the Warren 
Consolidated School District 

St. George Antiochian Orthodox Church 
2160 E. Maple 

26 
Sections 26, 27, 34 and 35 south of I-
75 in the Troy School District 

Troy Community Center 
3179 Livernois 

27 

Section 28 and Sections 25, 26, and 27 
north of I-75 and south of E. Big 
Beaver in Sections in the Troy School 
District  

Troy Community Center 
3179 Livernois 

28 
Sections 29 and 32 in the Troy School 
District 

St. Alan Catholic Church 
3077 Glouchester 

29 
Sections 18, 19, 30, and 31 in the 
Birmingham School District 

North Hills Christian Reformed Church 
3150 N. Adams 

30 
Section 35 in the Royal Oak School 
District and the Section 36 in the 
Lamphere School District 

Troy Community Center 
3179 Livernois 

31 
Sections 6, 7, and 18 in the Bloomfield 
Hills School District 

Nature Center 
6685 Coolidge Hwy. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 17, 2007 

 

- 10 - 

Yes: 
No: 
 

E-7 Limousine Permit Revocation Appeal – Nautical Mile Transportation 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

a. Proposed Resolution to Confirm Revocation 
 
WHEREAS, Based on the recommendation of the Troy Police Department, on October 26, 
2007, the City Clerk revoked Nautical Mile Transportation’s limousine vehicle permits, which 
are numbered 2007-031 through 2007-036;  
 
WHEREAS, Michael Saad, the owner of Nautical Mile Transportation, has appealed the Clerk’s 
revocation to the City Council of the City of Troy; and  
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to Troy Code of Ordinances Chapter 59, Licenses, City Council has the 
authority to review the decision to revoke any permit issued by the City;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council, after providing due process, and 
considering statements from Michael Saad, Representatives from the Troy Police Department, 

and other persons, hereby AFFIRMS the City Clerk’s revocation of the limousine vehicle 

permits and FINDS that the Clerk’s action was supported by cause; specifically, Nautical Mile 
Transportation has violated Troy Code of Ordinances Chapter 65 section 65.502 (fraudulent 
application/improper use of permit), and has engaged in an act that is unlawful, irregular or 
fraudulent in nature; and 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONFIRMS the 
revocation of the limousine vehicle permits, which are numbered 2007-031 through 2007-036, 
and held by Nautical Mile Transportation. 
 

OR 
 

b.  Proposed Resolution to Reinstate Limousine Permit for One Vehicle Owned by 

Michael Saad 

 
WHEREAS, Based on the recommendation of the Troy Police Department, on October 26, 
2007, the City Clerk revoked six limousine vehicle permits held by Nautical Mile Transportation, 
which are numbered 2007-031 through 2007-036;  
 
WHEREAS, Michael Saad, the owner of Nautical Mile Transportation, has appealed the Clerk’s 
revocation to the City Council of the City of Troy; and 
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to Troy Code of Ordinances Chapter 59, Licenses, City Council has the 
authority to review the decision to revoke any permit issued by the City;  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 17, 2007 

 

- 11 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council, after holding a hearing and 
considering statements from Michael Saad, Representatives from the Troy Police Department, 

and other persons, hereby CONFIRMS the revocation of the limousine vehicle permits, which 
were held by Nautical Mile Transportation; and 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REINSTATES 

Nautical Mile Transportation’s limousine vehicle permit (Number 2007-031) for ONLY that 
vehicle, described as a 2006 black Lincoln Town Car, VIN Number: 1LNHM82V06YG49236, 
which is owned by Michael Saad. 

  
 Yes: 
 No: 

 

E-8 Goodman Investments, LLC 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the attached First Amendment to the 
Consent Order and Judgment between GOODMAN INVESTMENTS, LLC, Successor Plaintiff 
to HARVEY S. FINK, and the CITY OF TROY concerning the property located at 2095 E. Big 

Beaver Rd., in the City of Troy, Parcel Number 88-20-24-352-045, and AUTHORIZES the 
Mayor and City Clerk and City Attorney to execute the document on behalf of the City of Troy.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 12 “F”.  

 

F-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 17, 2007 

 

- 12 - 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of December 3, 

2007 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 

 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 07-8 – Square 

Lake, Livernois to Rochester and John R at Mt. Vernon Water Main Replacement – 

Project No. 06.503.5 and 07.503.5     
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 07-8, Square Lake, 
Livernois to Rochester and John R at Mt. Vernon Water Main Replacement to Bricco 
Excavating Co., LLC, 21201 Meyers Road, Oak Park, MI 48237-3201 at an estimated total cost 
of $590,444.70; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 

requirements, and if additional work is required, Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES such 
additional work in an amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Architectural Services for 

the Troy Museum and Historic Village     
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide architectural 
services for the Troy Museum and Historic Village to the highest rated bidder, Hopkins Burns 
Design Studio of Ann Arbor, MI, as a result of a best value process at an estimated cost of 
$219,265.00 to be funded by monies received from the Troy Historical Society, at prices as 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 17, 2007 

 

- 13 - 

listed on the tabulation opened October 8, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon consultant submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: US Communities Cooperative Purchasing 

Program – Landscape Structures, Inc.     
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council APPROVES a contract to purchase and install four natural 
climbing boulders and engineered wood fiber through the US Communities Cooperative 
Purchasing Program Contract #040377 with Landscape Structures, Inc. for an estimated total 
cost of $52,570.00. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission 
of proper insurance certificate(s) and any other specified requirements.   
 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Audit Services     
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 
WHEREAS, On April 18, 2005, a three-year contract to provide Audit Services with an option to 
renew for three additional years was awarded to The Rehmann Group of Saginaw, MI, the 
vendor selected by Troy City Council as a result of a best value process (Resolution #2005-04-
182); and 
 
WHEREAS, The Rehmann Group has agreed to exercise the option to renew for three 
additional years under the same pricing structure, terms, and conditions; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contract for three additional years with The Rehmann Group to provide Audit 
Services through December 31, 2010, for an estimated total cost of $67,568.00, under the 
same pricing structure, terms, and conditions as the original contract, in accordance with 
contract requirements. 
 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Oakland County Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles     
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase two (2) 2008 
Dodge Chargers from Golling Chrysler Jeep Dodge, Inc. of Bloomfield Hills, MI, through the 
Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement at an estimated total cost of $44,504.00.   



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 17, 2007 

 

- 14 - 

 

F-5 Acceptance of Fireman’s Fund Insurance Company Grant 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Troy Fire Department to receive 
a Heritage Rewards Grant from Fireman’s Fund Insurance Company for the purchase of public 
education program materials; and  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Fire Department 
equipment budget due to the grant award in the amount of $6,237.00. 
 

F-6 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the transfer of Municipal Credit funds 
in the amount of $76,084.00 and Community Credit funds in the amount of $106,432.00 to Troy 
Medi-Go Plus for the operation of transportation service for senior citizens and persons with 

disabilities and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-7 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement for John R Road Improvements, 

Square Lake Road to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #33 –Sidwell 

#88-20-02-427-007 – Kinette A. Bayliss 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Kinette A. Bayliss, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-02-427-
007, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road Improvements, 
Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amount of $12,400.00, plus closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 17, 2007 

 

- 15 - 

 

F-8 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement for John R Road Improvements, 

Square Lake Road to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #68B –

Sidwell #88-20-01-151-047 – Mark and Elizabeth Abro 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Mark and Elizabeth Abro, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-
01-151-047, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road 
Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amount of $14,400.00, plus 
closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-9 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Right-of-Way and a Permanent 

Easement for Water Main, Section 21 – Sidwell #88-20-21-426-012 – ESC 

Associates, LLC   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Warranty Deed and Permanent 
Easement for water main from ESC Associates, LLC owner of the property having Sidwell #88-
20-21-426-012; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-10 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Right-of-Way and a Permanent 

Easement for Water Main, Section 21 – Sidwell #88-20-21-426-009 – Livernois 

Properties, LLC   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Warranty Deed and Permanent 
Easement for water main from Livernois Properties, LLC owner of the property having Sidwell 
#88-20-21-426-009; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 17, 2007 

 

- 16 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-11 Request for Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit, John R 

Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 

– Parcel #76 – Sidwell #88-20-01-108-018 – Hana Rrapi   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby  ACCEPTS the Regrading and Temporary 
Construction Permit in the amount of $500.00 from Hana Rrapi, owner of property having 
Sidwell #88-20-01-108-018; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AGREES to pay Hana Rrapi an 
amount not to exceed $500.00 for permission to use land for construction; and  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, 

a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-12 Allocation of 2008 Tri-Party Program Funds for County Road Improvements in 

Troy   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the use of 2008 Tri-Party program 
funding allocation of $544,591.00, as required, for the Livernois, Maple to Big Beaver 
reconstruction project; Dequindre, Long Lake to South Boulevard right-of-way phase; and 
concrete slab replacements on County roads, all at an estimated cost to the City of Troy not to 
exceed $181,530.00.   
 

F-13 Kocenda v. Troy et. al.   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-12- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES and DIRECTS the City Attorney to 
represent the City of Troy and its employees in any and all claims for damages in the matter of 
David Kocenda v City of Troy, et al, Oakland County Circuit Court case number 2007-085524-
CZ; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney 
to pay necessary costs and expenses and to retain any necessary expert witnesses to 
adequately represent the City and its employees.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 17, 2007 

 

- 17 - 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
    

G-2 Green Memorandums: None Submitted   
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced   

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 
 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  

a) Historic District Study Committee/Final – September 4, 2007 

b) Youth Council/Final – September 26, 2007  

c) Election Commission/Final – October 1, 2007  

d) Historic District Study Committee/Final – October 2, 2007  

e) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – November 1, 2007 

f) Historic District Study Committee/Final – November 6, 2007 

g) Planning Commission/Final – November 13, 2007 

h) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – November 20, 2007  

i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – November 27, 2007  

j) Youth Council/Draft – November 28, 2007  

k) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – December 4, 2007  

l) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – December 6, 2007 

m) Election Commission/Draft – December 7, 2007 
 

J-2 Department Reports:   

a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of November, 2007  

b) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – November 30, 2007 
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter of Thanks to Mayor Schilling from Bob Ottaway, President Bloomfield Woods 
Condominium Association Regarding the Assistance Received from the Troy Fire 
Department  

b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Nelson from Thomas Burke Regarding the Outstanding 
Service Provided by Lt. Janusz Bora  

c) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Beatrice Smits Regarding the Compassion and 
Support Received from the Troy Police Department and Legal Staff  

d) Letter of Thanks to Bill Huotari from Tim and Anna Backers Regarding the Assistance 
from Jennifer Lawson and the Engineering Staff during the Widening of Crooks Road        

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 17, 2007 

 

- 18 - 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

J-5  Calendar 
 

J-6  Communication from Alexia Gallaher, NFL Youth Football Fund Regarding a Grant 

of $1,000.00 to Troy Parks and Recreation for the 2007 NFL Local Agency Grant 

Program 
 

J-7  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 

the Re-greening of Troy Program 
  

J-8  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 

Civic Center Priority Task Force Development Update 

 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 17, 2007 

 

- 19 - 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, January 7, 2008 .......................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, January 28, 2008 ........................................................ Regular City Council 

Monday, February 4, 2008 ........................................................ Regular City Council 

Wednesday, February 13, 2008 (Liquor Violation Hearing) ...... Regular City Council 

Monday, February 18, 2008 ...................................................... Regular City Council 

Wednesday, February 20, 2008 (Liquor Violation Hearing) ...... Regular City Council 

Monday, March 3, 2008 ............................................................ Regular City Council 

Monday, March 17, 2008 .......................................................... Regular City Council 

 



1

Laura D Campbell

From:  on behalf of agenda
Subject: FW: 12.17.07 - Presentation of a Special Tribute to the City of Troy - Safest City In Michigan - 

by State Representative Knollenberg and Senator Pappageorge 

 
 
_____________________________________________ 
From: Beth L Tashnick  
Sent: Wednesday, December 05, 2007 12:05 PM 
To: agenda 
Subject: 12.17.07 - Presentation of a Special Tribute to the City of Troy - Safest City In Michigan - by State 
Representative Knollenberg and Senator Pappageorge  
 
 
(Agenda Text only- no back-up) 
 
Special Tribute to the City of Troy from State Representative Marty Knollenberg and State Senator John 
Pappageorge – Safest City in Michigan  
 
 

Uxà{ gtá{Ç|v~  
City of Troy  
Manager's Office  
tashnickbl@troymi.gov  
Phone (248) 524-3330  
Fax    (248) 524-0851  
 
 

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
A-01a

campbellld
Text Box



Service Commendation 
 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy wish to express  
on behalf of the City, their appreciation to 

 

DAVID WALLER 
 

In recognition of outstanding service to the community, and 
 
 
WHEREAS, He has at all times furthered those ideals that contribute to a better 
community. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council, being the 
duly elected voice of the citizens of Troy, express the City’s appreciation and 
recognition for this distinguished citizen’s service since January 18, 1993 through 
2007 as a member of the  
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be presented as a lasting 
expression of the City’s gratitude and appreciation for his contribution to the betterment 
of the City of Troy, Michigan. 
 
 
Presented this 10th Day of February 2007. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01b



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

December 17, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  

campbellld
Text Box
B-01



 

 
 
October 17, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager - Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing for Establishment of an Industrial Development District 

(IDD) for Seco Tools, Inc., 2805 Bellingham, Troy MI 48083  
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Seco Tools, Inc., is currently located in Warren.  They are a subsidiary of Seco Tools AB, a 

Swedish company.  Their intent is to move their North American headquarters, including the 
Technical Training Center, the NAFTA warehouse, and all of the sales and administrative 
operations into a new 81,000 square foot building that they will have a long term lease for, on 
Bellingham, in Troy.  In conjunction with Michigan Economic Development Corporation grants, 
they are seeking (and MEDC requires) a local match to facilitate their ability to stay in Michigan, 
and more particularly, Troy. 

 
Our requested local match is for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to be issued 
by the City of Troy (application attached).  This is according to Public Act 198 of 1974 (as 
amended) and local City policy.  As you will recall, this amounts to an approximate 50% reduction 
in personal property taxes that they would pay, over a twelve (12) year period.  This percentage is 
not inclusive of State Education Tax (6.00 Mill) or School Operating Tax (18.00 mills).  These 
taxes have been exempted on Personal Property of Industrial companies by the new Michigan 
Business Tax of 2007.  The reduction in millage rates is for locally levied millages only.   
 
In order to grant the IFEC, an Industrial Development District (IDD) must first be established.  This 
District sets the boundaries wherein the exemption may exist. 
 
The IDD and the IFEC do require separate Public Hearings, unless the local unit has delineated all 
areas where IDD’s may locate, in advance.  Council’s policy is to set the district as each 
application is received.  For this reason, the bulk of the information for this application is presented 
with the District public hearing. 

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The estimated amount of investment in personal property is $6,014,028 for the project.  Over a 

twelve (12) year life, the estimated total taxes are $219,057.46, of which $84,746.00 would be City 
taxes. 

 
A 50% abatement amounts to a savings of $109,528.73 in total taxes, of which $42,373.00 would 
be saved on City taxes.  This is the financial cost to all taxing authorities.  

 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 

Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The application is in compliance with the amended tax abatement policy of the City Council of the 

City of Troy (Resolution #2006-06-238, attached).  
 

City Council Goal II, “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment” is met with 
this re-location.  Seco Tools will be occupying a new 81,000 square foot building in the 
SmartZone. 

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend establishing the 
District. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option to establish an Industrial Development district, or not.  If Council does 

not establish a District, then no Exemption can be granted.  A public hearing is still necessary to 
deny the exemption. 

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\Seco Tools\CouncilPakIDD PH 



















Michigan Department of Treasury
3222 (Rev. 6-05)

Is this project:
Real Property?
Personal Property?
Both Real and Personal Property - New Facility?
Both Real and Personal Property - Rehabilitation Facility?
Both New and Replacement Facility?

YES NO

YES NO

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

REMARKS

A. Has the proper local authority reviewed the
plan?

B. Is the project located in a certified industrial
park?

C. Is this a renovation or expansion of an existing
building?

Will this project require improvement of your road
service?

Will this project require improvement of your
sanitary sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your storm
sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your water
services?

Will this project require additional police
personnel, police equipment or a need for new
police building expansion?

Will this project require the need for additional fire
personnel, additional or specialized fire equipment
or the need for a new fire building?

Will this project require other costs?

Are costs of infrastructure elements to be provided
through Local Development Finance Authority or
Tax Increment Finance Authority Bonds?

If you answered yes to any of questions 2 through 8, the appropriate sections of the Supplement to Fiscal Statement form 
must be completed and accompany the IFT application. Call (517) 373-3272 to obtain that form.

Estimated Project Investment (not assessed value):
Real Property Personal Property Total

Applicant Name

Signature Name and Title of Local Governmental Unit Official

This is to certify that the following has been provided as accurately as possible.
LOCAL UNIT CERTIFICATION

Fiscal Statement (to be completed by local unit)













Market Value 6,014,028 5,513,059 4,594,584 3,446,397 2,298,058 1,340,917 670,727 279,626 93,283 23,349 3,899 326 0
50% of Value 3,007,014 2,756,530 2,297,292 1,723,199 1,149,029 670,458 335,363 139,813 46,642 11,674 1,950 163 0

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
Depreciation 0.9167 0.8334 0.7501 0.6668 0.5835 0.5002 0.4169 0.3336 0.2503 0.1670 0.0837 0.0004

Taxable Value 2,756,530 2,297,292 1,723,199 1,149,029 670,458 335,363 139,813 46,642 11,674 1,950 163 0

Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes
100% of 
Millage

Trans 0.59500 $1,640.14 $1,366.89 $1,025.30 $683.67 $398.92 $199.54 $83.19 $27.75 $6.95 $1.16 $0.10 $0.00
County 4.64610 $12,807.11 $10,673.45 $8,006.15 $5,338.50 $3,115.02 $1,558.13 $649.58 $216.70 $54.24 $9.06 $0.76 $0.00

Int Schools 3.36900 $9,286.75 $7,739.58 $5,805.46 $3,871.08 $2,258.77 $1,129.84 $471.03 $157.14 $39.33 $6.57 $0.55 $0.00
Comm Coll 1.58440 $4,367.45 $3,639.83 $2,730.24 $1,820.52 $1,062.27 $531.35 $221.52 $73.90 $18.50 $3.09 $0.26 $0.00

State Ed 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
School Op 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Sch Debt 4.13000 $11,384.47 $9,487.82 $7,116.81 $4,745.49 $2,768.99 $1,385.05 $577.43 $192.63 $48.22 $8.05 $0.67 $0.00

Admin 0.38310 $1,056.03 $880.09 $660.16 $440.19 $256.85 $128.48 $53.56 $17.87 $4.47 $0.75 $0.06 $0.00
City 9.28000 $25,580.60 $21,318.87 $15,991.28 $10,662.99 $6,221.85 $3,112.17 $1,297.46 $432.83 $108.34 $18.09 $1.51 $0.00
Total 23.98760 $66,122.53 $55,106.52 $41,335.40 $27,562.44 $16,082.69 $8,044.56 $3,353.78 $1,118.82 $280.04 $46.77 $3.91 $0.00

Total 12 Years $219,057.46
Total City 12 Yr $84,746.00

50% Total 12 Yr $109,528.73
50% Total City 12 $42,373.00 Net Total City Taxes Abated

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Seco Tools, Inc.

Estimate of Total Taxes and Tax Savings for IFEC Application

Net Total Taxes Abated



F-5 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement for Manufacturing and 
Headquarter Companies 

 
Resolution #2006-06-238 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the industrial base of the community, (c) reducing 
economic obsolescence of the industrial base, (d) providing homogenous industrial areas, (e) 
encouraging industrial expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities in industrial areas, 
and (g) encouraging attractive, viable industrial sites, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, empowers 
cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax exemptions for certain 
industrial properties which meet certain criteria established by the Act; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that the following 
criteria are to be met, applied or measured by the City Manager or his designees in the review 
of areas and locations to be considered for designation as Industrial Development Districts 
(IDD) by the City Council: 
 

1) That the tax exemption shall not apply to real property except those building 
improvements which are uniquely required to support the personal property to be 
abated; and 

 
2) That the tax exemption shall not apply to leasehold improvements or building 

improvements except those uniquely required to support personal property to be 
abated; and  

 
3) That said abatement of taxes shall cease at such time as applicant fails to prove 

by factual evidence that such personal property is being used in compliance with 
the basic guidelines established above. 

 
4) The applicant would document that they are Michigan Economic Growth Authority 

(MEGA) eligible, would be filling vacant Troy space, or will retain or expand the 
number of jobs in Troy. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the term of abatement for any and all property meeting the 
aforementioned criteria SHALL NOT exceed 12 years, it being the INTENT OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL TO APPROVE various lengths of abatements to the extent provided by laws of the 
State of Michigan. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 



 

Seco Tools Legal Description 

88-20-26-200-088 

T2N, R11E, SEC 26  

OAKLAND COUNTY CONDOMINIUM PLAN NO 1623  

THE AUTOMATION ALLEY TECHNOLOGY PARK TROY CONDO  

UNIT 2  

L32860 P101 

4-23-04 FR 083 



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source 
information represented should be consulted for verification. 

Page 1 of 1

10/16/2007http://gis/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=TROY&ClientVersion=4.0&F...



October 16, 2007 
 
 
To: State Tax Commission 
 P.O. Box 30471 
 Lansing, MI 48909-7971 
 
From: Leger (Nino) Licari, Assessor 
 
Re: Affidavit of Application Fees For IFEC 
 
 
 
 
  This affidavit attests that no payment of any kind has been made or 
promised in exchange for favorable consideration of an exemption 
certificate application by the City of Troy, in regards to the application of                     
Seco Tools, Inc., 2805 Bellingham, Troy, Michigan 48083. 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________               ______________ 
Signed, Leger (Nino) Licari, City Assessor                                           Dated 
 
 
____________________________________________                     __________________ 
Signed,                                                                                                 Dated 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 

 
     This agreement between Seco Tools, Inc., (“Company”) and the City 
of Troy, is for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of Public Act 198, 
as amended in Public Act 334, Section 22. 
 
     In consideration of approval of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC), Seco Tools, Inc., understands that through its 
investment of $ 6,014,028.00 and its qualification for Michigan Economic 
Development Corporation incentives, and the City of Troy, by its 
investment of the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, are mutually 
investing in and benefiting from this economic development project, and 
furthermore, agree to the following: 

   
 
1.) The length of time for which the abatement is approved is __ 

years after either completion of construction of the facilities, or 
December 31, 2022, whichever is sooner. 

 
2.) At the end of two (2) years or no later than December 31, 

2010, Seco Tools, Inc., will report to the Assessing 
Department of the City of Troy the actual cost of this project 
and indicate any differences and the reason for any 
differences in the cost or scope of the project as compared to 
the IFEC application submitted by the Company. 

 
3.) Seco Tools, Inc., agrees to remain within the City of Troy for 

the period of the Industrial Facilities Tax (IFT) abatement in 
order to retain the benefits of the IFT, unless permission for 
relocation is granted by the City Council of the City of Troy. 

 
Seco Tools, Inc., further understands that if it chooses to 
leave the City of Troy without permission for relocation prior to 
the end of the term of the IFT, the City Council of the City of 
Troy has the right to recapture from the Company the total 
amount of taxes abated by the IFT. 

 
4.)  Seco Tools, Inc., understands that the City of Troy may 

reduce the term of the IFEC, revoke the IFEC and/or recover 
from the Company, the amount of taxes which were abated if 
the project has not been completed, expenditures made, as 
represented by the Company, in Section 12’C of its 
application, by sending a copy of this Agreement along with a 
copy of the City Council Resolution authorizing such action to 
the State Tax Commission. 

 
 
 



 
5.)  Seco Tools, Inc., agrees that it will operate the Project in 

accordance with all applicable Federal, State and Local laws 
or regulations, including but not limited to zoning, outside 
storage, industrial waste disposal, air and water quality, noise 
control, other environmental regulations, and all of the terms 
and conditions of the Consent Judgment governing the parcel. 

 
6.) By execution of the Agreement, it is understood that the 

Company’s investment in the Project, and the City of Troy’s 
investment in the granting of the IFEC is to encourage 
economic growth within the City of Troy. 
 
The City of Troy acknowledges that in some instances 
economic conditions may prevent the Company from 
complying fully with this Agreement, and the terms of the 
Application.  The City of Troy will give the Company an 
opportunity to explain the reasons for any variations from the 
representations contained in the Application and will evaluate 
the Company’s situation prior to taking any action authorized 
by Paragraph 4 and 5 of this Letter of Agreement.  

 
7.) This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

parties and there are no other remedies for breach of this 
Agreement other than as specified in this Agreement or as 
provided for in Public Act 198. 

 
     This agreement may only be altered upon mutual consent of both 
parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
(Signature page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ __________________ 
   (date) 
 
Name:       
 
Title:  
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling , Mayor (date) 
 City of Troy 
 500 W Big Beaver 
 Troy, MI 48084-5285 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew                         (date) 
 City Clerk 



















 

 
 
October 17, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager - Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing to consider granting an Industrial Facilities Exemption 

Certificate (IFEC) to Seco Tools, Inc., 2805 Bellingham, Troy MI 48083 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Seco Tools, Inc., is currently located in Warren.  In conjunction with Michigan Economic 

Development Corporation (MEDC) grants, they are seeking (and MEDC requires) a local match to 
facilitate their ability to stay in Michigan, and more particularly, Troy. 

 
Our requested local match is for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to be issued 
by the City of Troy.  This is according to Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended) and local City 
policy.   
 

Financial Considerations: 
 
 The estimated amount of investment in personal property is $6,014,028 for the project.  Over a 

twelve (12) year life, the estimated total taxes are $219,057.46, of which $84,746.00 would be City 
taxes. 

 
A 50% abatement amounts to a savings of $109,528.73 in total taxes, of which $42,373.00 would 
be saved on City taxes.  This is the financial cost to all taxing authorities.  

 
 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 

Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



Policy Considerations: 
 
 The application is in compliance with the newly amended tax abatement policy of the City Council 

of the City of Troy (Resolution #2006-06-238, attached).  
 

City Council Goal II, “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment” is met with 
this expansion.   

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend establishing the 
District. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option of granting the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate for any period 

of one (1) to twelve (12) years, or not at all.   
 

This is a well-established company, with many opportunities to expand, and staff recommends 
that the Exemption be granted for the full twelve (12) years. 

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\Seco Tools\CouncilPakIFEC PH 



 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MICHAEL ADAMCZYK 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
PATRICK DOHANY 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
SECO TOOLS, INC 
MICHAEL L NEEL 
11177 E 8 MILE RD 
WARREN  MI 48089 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, December 17, 2007 at 7:30 P.M. 

to consider the request from Seco Tools Inc., for the granting of an Industrial Facilities 

Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for a period not to exceed 12 years, beginning December 

31, 2008, for personal property located at: 

 

T2N, R11, E, of Section 26 

2805 Bellingham, Troy, Michigan 48083, 

Parcel # 88-20-26-200-088 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
DATE: December 10, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Rezoning Application – Proposed Rite Aid Pharmacy Development, 

North side of Long Lake, East side of Rochester Road, Section 11 – B-1 to B-2 (File 
Number Z-729) 

 

 
Background: 
 

 The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request to rezone the parcel to B-2 
at the November 13, 2007 Regular meeting.   
 

 The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Community Service Area.  The 
Community Service Area classification has a primary correlation with the B-2 zoning district.  
The application therefore is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan. 
 

 Parcel 1 (1047 – 1055 E. Long Lake) is approximately 0.67 acres in size and Parcel 2 (5016-
5024 Rochester) is approximately 0.68 acres in size for a total of approximately 1.35 acres.  
Small retail centers currently sit on Parcel 1 and Parcel 2.  The applicant proposes to 
assemble Parcels 1 and 2 along with Parcel 3 which is approximately 1.01 acres in size and 
located immediately south and west of the proposed rezoning and is currently developed as a 
gasoline service station.  The stated intent is to construct a Rite Aid Pharmacy including a 
drive-up window. The total size of the assembled parcel will be approximately 2.36 acres. 
 

 The applicant decided that Parcel 3 shall remain zoned H-S Highway Service classification to 
permit the gasoline service station to continue.  If the proposed future development is not 
approved, the gasoline service station will remain a conforming use.  A pharmacy with drive-up 
window is a use permitted in both the H-S Highway Service and B-2 Community Business 
zoning districts. 

 

 The application is consistent with the general character of the area and compatible with adjacent 
zoning districts and land uses. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-03



Financial Considerations: 
 

 There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

 City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

 Approval of the rezoning application would be consistent with City Council Goal III (Retain and 
attract investment while encouraging redevelopment). 

 
 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve or deny the rezoning application. 
 
 
 
 

Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Planning Commission report dated October 22, 2007. 
3. Minutes from the November 13, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
4. Public comment. 
 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File /Z 729 
 

 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-729 Rite Aid Development Sec 11\CC Public Hearing 12 17 07.doc 

 
 





R
O

C
H

E
STE

R

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

KS

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

AD
A

M
S



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



E LONG LAKE

MAYBERRY

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

A
SHLEY

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED RITE AID DEVELOPMENT
FROM B-1 TO B-2
N SIDE LONG LAKE, E SIDE ROCHESTER RD.
SEC. 11  (Z-729)

SUBJECT PARCEL

0 200 400100
Feet ³



E LONG LAKE

MAYBERRY

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

A
SHLEY

O-1

R-1C

B-1

B-2

H-S

B-3

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED RITE AID DEVELOPMENT
FROM B-1 TO B-2
N SIDE LONG LAKE, E SIDE ROCHESTER RD.
SEC. 11  (Z-729)

SUBJECT PARCEL

0 200 400100
Feet ³





 1 

DATE: October 22, 2007 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 Ronald Figlan, Planner 
 Paula Preston Bratto, Planner 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION – Proposed Rite Aid 

Pharmacy Development, North side of Long Lake, East side of Rochester 
Road, Section 11 – B-1 to B-2 (Z-729) 

 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner is Arkon Jonna of A. F. Jonna Development Co.  The applicant is John 
Hennessey of Hennessey Engineers Inc. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the north side of Long Lake Road and the east side of 
Rochester Road, in Section 11. 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
Parcel 1 (1047 – 1055 E. Long Lake) is approximately 0.67 acres in size and Parcel 2 
(5016-5024 Rochester) is approximately 0.68 acres in size for a total of approximately 
1.35 acres. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
Small retail centers currently sit on Parcel 1 and Parcel 2. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
B-1 Local Business.   
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
B-2 Community Business. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to assemble Parcels 1 and 2 along with Parcel 3 which is 
approximately 1.01 acres in size and located immediately south and west of the 
proposed rezoning and is currently developed as a gasoline service station.  The stated 
intent is to construct a Rite Aid Pharmacy including a drive-up window. The total size of 
the assembled parcel will be approximately 2.36 acres. 



 2 

The applicant decided that Parcel 3 shall remain zoned H-S Highway Service 
classification to permit the gasoline service station to continue.  If the proposed future 
development is not approved, the gasoline service station will remain a conforming use.  
A pharmacy with drive-up window is a use permitted in both the H-S Highway Service 
and B-2 Community Business zoning districts. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: B-1 Local Business. 
South: H-S Highway Service, B-3 General Business and O-1 Low Rise Office. 
East: B-2 Community Business. 
West: H-S Highway Service, B-2 Community Business and O-1 Low Rise Office. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Father & Son Construction. 
South: Gas Station, Belle Tire & Bank. 
East: Shopping Center. 
West: Gas Station, Bank & Shopping Center. 
 
 

ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in Proposed B-2 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 

Any retail business or service establishment permitted in B-1 Districts as Principal 
Uses Permitted and Uses Permitted Subject to Special Conditions,  

 
Any retail business whose principal activity is the sale of merchandise in an 
enclosed building, except for those limited to or first permitted in the B-3 General 
Business District. 

 
Any service establishment of a showroom or workshop nature, of an electrician, 
decorator, dressmaker, tailor, baker, painter, upholsterer; or an establishment 
doing radio or home appliance repair, photographic studios and reproduction and 
similar service establishments that require a retail adjunct. 

 
Business establishments which perform services on the premises, such as but not 
limited to:  banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, loan companies, 
insurance offices, travel services, and real estate offices. 

 
 Private clubs, fraternal organization, and lodge halls. 
 

Restaurants, or other places serving food or beverage, except those having the 
character of a drive-in or open front store. 



 3 

Theaters, assembly halls, concert halls or similar places of assembly, when 
conducted completely within enclosed buildings. 
 
Business schools and colleges or private schools operated for profit, not including 
nursery schools. 

 
 Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 

Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 

USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 

Drive-up Windows or Service Facilities, as Accessory to Principal Uses within B-2 
Districts, Apart from Restaurants 

 
Outside seating areas, of twenty (20) seats or less, for restaurants or other food 
service establishments 

 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL 
 

Drive-Up Windows or Service Facilities, as an Accessory to Restaurants Permitted 
Within this District 

 
Bowling alley, billiard hall, indoor archery range, indoor skating, rinks, indoor tennis 
courts, athletic or health clubs, or similar forms of indoor commercial recreation, 
when the subject uses are located at least 100 feet from any Residential District. 

 
Open air business uses when developed as uses subordinate to primary uses and 
structures within the B-2 District as follows: 

  A. Retail sales of plant material not grown on the site, and sales of lawn 
furniture, playground equipment and garden supplies. 

  B. Recreational space providing shuffleboard, miniature golf, tennis, or 
similar outdoor recreation, when part of a planned development. 

  C. Outdoor driver training and testing areas on or abutting the site of a driving 
school. 

 
Outside seating areas, in excess of twenty (20) seats, for restaurants, or other food 
service establishments 

 
Facilities within a retail establishment for installation, in vehicles, of items sold at 
retail at that location. 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcels front on Rochester Road and Long Lake Road. 



 4 

Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention and all other utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Community Service Area.  The 
Community Service Area classification has a primary correlation with the B-2 zoning 
district and a secondary correlation with the B-3, B-1 and O-1 zoning districts.  The 
application therefore is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards of the B-2 District:  
There are no Location Standards for the B-2 General Commercial District. 
 
 

CITY MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATION 
 
The rezoning application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan and 
compatible with abutting zoning districts and uses.   
 
City Management recommends approval of the rezoning request. 
 
 
cc: Applicant 

File / Z 729 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-729 Rite Aid Development Sec 11\PC Report Z-729 11 13 07.doc 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL  NOVEMBER 13, 2007 

 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 729) – Proposed Rite Aid 

Pharmacy Development, North side of Long Lake, East side of Rochester Road, 
Section 11 – B-1 (Local Business) District to B-2 (Community Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management 
to approve the rezoning request.  Mr. Savidant announced that a letter of 
opposition was distributed to the members prior to the beginning of tonight’s 
meeting.   
 
Ms. Troshynski asked which direction the store would face.  
 
Chair Schultz asked the Assistant City Attorney to address discussion of site plan 
issues at the time a rezoning request is considered.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said members are not to consider site plan issues during the 
approval process of a rezoning request, but consideration should be given to all 
applicable uses in a specific zoning district.  She indicated the developer would 
not be bound by any commitments made relating to the site plan.   
 
The petitioner was present.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-11-165 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the B-1 to B-2 rezoning request, located on the north side of Long 
Lake Road, east of Rochester Road, within Section 11, being approximately 1.35 
acres in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 









 

 
 
 
October 26, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Alcohol Sales on Golf Course(s) 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Chapter 30, Section 10C of the City Code prohibits the sale of alcohol on the golf course(s). 
 Previously, the food service providers at both golf courses have informally inquired about the 

possibility of allowing alcohol sales on the golf course.   
 Attached is correspondence from Gordie Kosch, Sanctuary Lake food service provider, formally 

requesting the City permit the sale of alcohol on the Sanctuary Lake course. 
 Golfers are allowed to buy two beers in the restaurant(s) and take onto the golf course. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 As the Sanctuary Lake food Contractor pays a percentage of sales over $125,000, there is the 

potential for additional revenue to the City by allowing alcohol to be sold at Sanctuary Lake Golf 
Course. 

 Although direct revenue from the sales will not be increased at Sylvan Glen since the Contractor 
pays rent, allowing alcohol sales on the course would enable the contractor to increase revenue 
and remain a viable business.   

 There is interest from many golfers for this service and, if allowed, could result in additional golf 
rounds.   

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 Chapter 30 of the City Code will need to be revised to allow sales on the golf course proper. 
 If approved, addendums to the agreements with the food service providers at both golf courses 

would be prepared and forwarded to the City Council for approval. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Allowing the sale of alcohol on the golf course(s) helps to attract and retain investment. (Goal 3) 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



 
 
October 26, 2007 
 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
RE:  Alcohol Sales on Golf Course(s) 
 
Options: 
 
 City Council can direct staff to pursue options to allow alcohol to be sold on the golf course and to 

prepare addendums to the agreements with Kosch and Camp Ticonderoga to allow alcohol sales 
on the golf course(s). 

 City Council can take no action.   
 
Where legal review is necessary: 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:        
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 



9/18/07 
 
Carol Anderson 
City of Troy 
Director of Parks and Recreation 
3179 Livernois 
Troy, MI 48083 
 
Dear Carol, 
 
After a season of operations at Sanctuary Lake we are pleased to communicate that it was 
a successful year of transition and customer appreciation. So many of our guests shared 
their happiness over the many improvements of the operation, from the interior 
renovations, to the patio clean up and window panels, to the expanded menu and services. 
 
One opportunity for an additional point of customer appreciation would be the inclusion 
of beer sales on the golf course. As you know, the City of Troy created an addendum to 
the State of Michigan Liquor Control Commission Licenses at Sanctuary Lake and 
Sylvan Glen not allowing beer sales on the course. If there was (is) one point of 
contention by many of our golfers, it is that restriction of beer sales, if we heard the 
complaint once, we heard it a hundred times. And perhaps more discerning is fact that we 
lost many golf outing groups because once they learned we could not service their group 
with beer on the course they said they would just go someplace else. 
 
Locally and in the State of Michigan the vast majority, about 85% of public courses do 
allow beer sales on the course, so this puts us at a competitive disadvantage. Our 
agreement with the City of Troy does pay a percentage of sales, so by approving this 
ability to allow the golf courses to sell beer on the course would make for happier golfers 
(most of which are Troy residents), and would provide the city with more revenue. 
 
Since the Michigan Liquor Control Commission does not restrict golf course beer sales in 
this regard, this would not require an intervention with the MLCC.   
 
Carol we would like this to be presented to the city council for review and consideration. 
I would appreciate the opportunity to discuss this and hopefully gain council’s approval. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Gordie Kosch  
President 
Kosch Catering & Corporate Dining 



 

 
 
November 6, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Action – Alcohol Sales at the Golf 

Courses 
 
 
At the November 1, 2007 meeting of the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board the following 
action was taken: 
 
Resolution #PR-2007-11-21 
Moved by:  Fejes 
Seconded by: Redpath 
 
RESOLVED, That the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommends that the City Council 
direct staff to pursue options which would allow alcohol sales on the golf courses and further 
that the City Council direct staff to prepare addendums to the existing food service agreements 
at both courses allowing alcohol sales on the golf course proper.   
 
Yes:  3    Krent, Fejes, Redpath 
No:  None 
Abstained: 3    Zikakis, Kaltsounis, Noce 
MOTION FAILED 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



 

 
 
 
October 26, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Liquor Advisory Board 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Alcohol Sales on Golf Course(s) 
 
 
Background: 
 

• The City does not allow the sale of alcohol on the golf course at Sanctuary Lake or Sylvan 
Glen Golf Course. (Chapter 30, Section 10C City Code) 

• Both food service vendors have liquor licenses. 
• Golfers are able to buy two beers at a time to take onto the course to consume while playing 

golf. 
• Both courses have outside seating where alcohol is served. 
• In the past, the food service providers at both golf courses have informally inquired about the 

possibility of allowing alcohol sales on the golf course.   
• Gordie Kosch, Sanctuary Lake food service provider, has formally requested the City permit 

the sale of alcohol on the Sanctuary Lake course.  
• If alcohol sales are allowed on the golf courses, Chapter 30 of the city code must be revised 

and adopted and addendums to the agreements with the vendors must be approved. 
 
This request was placed on the City Council agenda on November 12, 2007. At the meeting, the City 
Council postponed action until December 17, 2007 so the Liquor Advisory Board can review the 
request for input and advice. 
 
I would respectfully request this item be placed on the December 10, 2007 agenda. 

 

PPaarrkkss  aanndd  RReeccrreeaattiioonn  
 





LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             DECEMBER 10, 2007  

 Page 1 of 2 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, 
December 10, 2007 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 
West Big Beaver Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:00 
p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Clark Yuan, Student Representative 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of November 12, 2007 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2007-12-028 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the November 12, 2007 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  7 
No:  0 
Absent: None 
 

 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. Gordie Kosch, Sanctuary Lake food service provider, has formally requested 

the City permit the sale of alcohol on the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course.  This 
request was placed on the City Council agenda on November 12, 2007. At 
the meeting, the City Council postponed action until December 17, 2007 so 
the Liquor Advisory Board can review the request for input and advice.  



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             DECEMBER 10, 2007  

 Page 2 of 2 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Carol Anderson, Director of 
Parks & Recreation. 
 
Mrs. Anderson informed the Committee that the current City Ordinance prohibits the 
sale of alcoholic beverages on our municipal golf courses, but consumption is 
allowed.  A survey of the metropolitan Detroit municipal courses indicated that most 
establishments allow a beverage cart.   
 
The contractor, Gordie Kosch, would like to provide a beverage cart at Sanctuary 
Lake Golf Course.  His liquor license does not prohibit this activity.   
 
Sergeant Cantlon advised the Committee that the Police Department’s enforcement 
of the beverage cart would be the same as any other licensee.  The Department 
would enforce the licensee’s responsibilities and likely set up a decoy situation. 
 
 
Resolution #LC2007-12-029 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that the Liquor Advisory Committee is recommending to City Council 
that Chapter 30 of the Troy City Code be amended to allow a beverage cart on 
municipal golf courses for the sale of beverages under 21% alcohol by volume.   
 
Yes:  6 
No:  1 - Allemon 
Absent: None 
 
 

 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:42 p.m. 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
             Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

December 17, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

D-2 POSTPONED Appointments to Boards and Committees: b) City 
Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with 
Disabilities; Charter Revision Committee; Ethnic Issues Advisory 
Board      

 

campbellld
Text Box
D-02



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

December 17, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: 
Planning Commission      

 

campbellld
Text Box
E-01



 

 
 
December 4, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:   Bid Waiver – Purchase of Additional In-Car Video Systems   
  
 

Background 
 
 On October 16, 2006, City Council authorized the purchase and installation of in-car digital 

cameras and associated hardware and software. (CC Resolution #2006-10-392 – Item F2).  The 
background behind the project has essentially remained the same, but in way of review the 
following is offered:   

o The new digital cameras have replaced outdated technology and captures evidence in 
all types of cases thereby reducing civil liability. 

o Police departments, City management and risk organizations highly recommend the 
use of in-car recording systems. 

o The new systems are more reliable and have reduced staff time in management of the 
system in all aspects. 

o Prior to purchase, an evaluation was conducted on many different systems.  It was 
determined that the VisionHawk system, manufactured by International Police 
Technologies, best fit the department’s needs. 

   

Financial Considerations 
 
 Funding for the final phase of the project is available in the Police Communications capital 

account #401325.7980.050.  
 International Police Technologies (IPT) holds a Federal GSA contract (GS-07F-9906H) for the 

equipment. 
 Approval to utilize the GSA Schedule for this purchase authorized by the State of Michigan 

Department of Management and Budget through the 1122 Counterdrug Program. 
 
 
 
 

1 of 2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-02



 

December 4, 2007 
 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Waiver – In-Car Video System 
 
 
 

Legal Considerations 
 
 IPT is a GSA contract holder and is extending federal pricing.  Therefore, City management 

requests a bid waiver. 
 

Policy Considerations 
 
 The purchase of the VisionHawk in-car recording system will increase the Police Departments’ 

efficiency through digital technology (Goals #2 – “Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City 
government” and #4 – “Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally”). 

 In addition, the system provides excellent evidence on a variety of criminal cases most notably, 
drunk driving and enables the department to reduce civil liability (Goal #1 – “Enhance the livability 
and safety of the community”). 

 

Options 
 
 City management recommends that formal bidding procedures be waived and City Council 

authorizes the purchase of twelve (12) in-car video systems from International Police 
Technologies at an estimated cost of $67,068.00 using GSA-FSS Contract GS-07F-9906H 
pricing.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 

 
G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Regular Business – Waiver InCar VideoSystem.doc 













campbellld
Text Box
E-03







































campbellld
Text Box
E-04









campbellld
Text Box
E-05





 
Date December 12, 2007 

 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 
FROM: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 
SUBJECT: Proposed City of Troy Precinct Boundary Alterations & Relocations 
  

Background: 
 

 
  The City Clerk’s Office has reviewed City precincts and polling locations and recommends 

that City Council approve the proposed precinct boundary alterations and polling 
relocations. The Election Commission was provided a copy of this memorandum at their 
meeting held on Friday, December 7, 2007. Attached is a copy of the Election Commission 
minutes recommending approval of the proposed changes to City Council. 
 
The City Clerk’s office has reviewed precincts boundaries and polling locations to 
determine compliancy with State Statute requirements, County Commissioner Districts and 
school districts due to 2005 School Reconsolidation Legislation wherein the City Clerk’s 
office coordinates and/or administers the school district elections as individual districts and 
as a conglomeration of districts on ballots along with federal, state and local candidates 
and propositions causing a need for multiple ballot styles within several of the City of Troy 
precincts. Throughout the review, consideration was given in regard to the impact this 
legislation has on the current polling locations in terms of servicing the voters and the 
polling locations ability to effectively administer elections. 
 
The major factor in the boundary decision-making process is the elimination of multiple 
ballot styles. Multiple ballot styles within precincts add to the cost of elections due to 
additional ballot coding and printing expenses. It also warrants noting that multiple ballot 
styles in precincts contribute to longer lines, voter and Election Inspector confusion and 
increases the potential of incorrect ballot issuing to voters. The various precinct splits 
added 11 multiple ballot styles to the November 2007 Regular Election for a total of 28 
ballot styles for 17 precincts. Reorganized precincts would have reduced that number to 16 
ballot styles for 17 precincts. The only remaining ballot style issue upon adoption of the 
proposed boundary alterations and precinct relocations will be tied to the new Precinct 31 
for the Bloomfield School District located at the Nature Center where a precinct split is 
required when the County Commissioner District is on the ballot. This situation will impact a 
total of 36 voters.  
 
Precinct and polling location size were also very important factors in the drawing of precinct 
boundaries. The significance of the location size is tied to our ability to continue the 
practice of consolidating precincts for elections that do not contain state or federal 
offices/questions. School district boundaries have been utilized as definitive precinct 
boundaries in the proposed resolution and are permissible under Election Law. Precinct 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-06



numbers were sustained where possible and the precinct numbering pattern continued to 
follow section numbers as closely as possible. The numbering of precincts with splits and 
combinations was accomplished by allowing the portion of the precinct with the largest 
number of voters to retain the precinct number. Precinct 31 is the exception to the 
numbering system as there was not a number available for reassignment in that section. 
 
  Polling locations were also addressed by the Clerk’s Office. There are concerns with 

several polling locations in respect to parking constraints, and/or location or the size of the 
rooms available within the facility. To address these issues, the Clerk’s office recently met 
with the administrative staff of Woodside Bible Church to discuss the possibility of 
becoming a polling location. The Woodside facility can easily accommodate two precincts 
that would encompass all Troy voters in the Avondale School District. We are expecting to 
receive a decision from Woodside soon. If we are unable to relocate the Avondale School 
District voters to Woodside, we would then retain Faith Apostolic Church as a polling 
location and transfer all Avondale School District voters to that location. 
 
Precincts 12 and 13 have also been a concern since their relocation from the Fire & Police 
Training Center to Bethesda Romanian Pentecostal Church. While the facility serves as a 
valuable election partner, it cannot accommodate the number of voters registered in these 
two precincts. This situation becomes especially evident during a high voter turnout election 
such as the upcoming Presidential Election in November. For that reason, we are 
requesting to relocate Precinct 12, the smaller of the two precincts, back to the Fire and 
Police Training Center.  
 
In addition to the two new locations listed above, a number of voters will be relocated within 
existing precincts. The relocation of these voters is directly related to segregating school 
districts by creating stand alone precincts. As a result, the Troy Community Center will 
house a third precinct, Precinct 30, which will combine 630 voters from the Royal Oak and 
Lamphere School Districts. 
 
The overall result of the proposed City of Troy precinct and boundary alterations, and 
relocations amount to the addition of one precinct (Precinct 31), the establishment of two 
new polling locations (Woodside Bible Church and the Fire & Police Training Center), the 
elimination of one current polling location (Faith Apostolic Church) and the relocation of 
voters within in twelve current precincts (Precincts 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 12, 18, 19, 24, 29 and 
30). If Woodside Bible Church is unable to serve as a polling location, the overall result 
would be the addition of one precinct (Precinct 31), the establishment of one new polling 
location (Fire & Police Training Center) and the relocation of voters within twelve current 
precincts (Precincts 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 12, 18, 19, 24, 29 and 30). 
 
City Management recommends that the City precinct boundaries and polling locations be 
changed as indicated on the attached precinct map including the addition of two new 
polling locations effective with the May 6, 2008 Regular Election. This May election 
currently is slated to be utilized only by the Warren Consolidated School District. Therefore, 
most affected voters will be notified of the relocation immediately following the January 15, 
2008 Primary Election. 
 
All voters relocated to a new polling location will receive a new voter identification card. 
Additionally, new precinct maps will be posted at the Library, Community Center and City 
Hall. Several news releases will be prepared and sent to all local newspapers, Cable TV 
and Troy Today. All existing polling locations will distribute flyers to voters at the Primary 
Election on January 15, 2008 advising them of their new location.  



  Notification will also be posted at current and former locations during the 2008 election 
cycle to notify voters that might inadvertently report to their former voting location. Maps 
and copies of the new precinct boundary details and polling locations will be forwarded to 
the Secretary of State and Oakland County upon adoption. 
 

Financial Considerations: 
 

  The one-time cost for printing and mailing new voter identification cards to voters is 
estimated at $6,000.00. Additionally, there will be costs associated with the new Precinct 
31 for even-year August and November elections. The reoccurring costs will be for ballots, 
coding, inspectors and miscellaneous supplies. One-time expenditures for approximately 
$15,000.00 will be needed for additional equipment and supplies. It should be noted that 
additional polling locations are not required for non-federal and state elections due to the 
ability to consolidate precincts which will result in the same number of precincts as currently 
permitted during these types of elections. 

 

Legal Considerations: 
 

  There are no known policy considerations. 
 

Policy Considerations: 
 
  There are no known policy considerations. 

 

Options: 
 

  Adopt the proposed new precinct boundaries and polling location resolution or continue to 
utilize existing precincts with multiple school districts and ballot styles within precincts.  

 



!ñ(!ñ(

!ñ(

!ñ(

!ñ(

!ñ(

!ñ(

!ñ(

!ñ(

!ñ(

!ñ(

!ñ(

!ñ(

!ñ(

!ñ(

!ñ(

!ñ(

!ñ(

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

JO
H

N
 R

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

A
D

A
M

S

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

R
O

C
H

E
S

T
E

R

C
R

O
O

K
S

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER

A
D

A
M

S

S
T

E
P

H
E

N
S

O
N

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

K
S

FOURTEEN MILE

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

R
O

C
H

E
S

T
E

R

WATTLES

LONG LAKE

SQUARE LAKE

SOUTH BLVD

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

MAPLE

BIG BEAVER

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

LONG LAKE

MAPLE

���75

M
A

IN

���75 24

30

12

11

16

25

27

2220

19

21 23

28

18 17

8

15 14 13

109
7

6 4

5

2 1

26

3

31

29

19

18

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3
2

Voting Precinct Map

Effective: 2/1/2007

PRECINCT ADDRESS LOCACTION MAP ID

1 2601 E SQUARE LAKE EVANSWOOD CHURCH OF GOD 2

2 1825 E SQUARE LAKE KENSINGTON COMMUNITY CHURCH 3

3 6660 ROCHESTER WOODSIDE BIBLE CHURCH 18

4 280 E SQUARE LAKE ST ELIZABETH ANN SETON CATHOLIC CHURCH 13

5 6660 ROCHESTER WOODSIDE BIBLE CHURCH 18

6 6685 COOLIDGE HWY. TROY NATURE CENTER 4

7 5500 ADAMS ST STEPHEN EPISCOPAL CHURCH 9

8 1800 W LONG LAKE NORTHFIELD HILLS BAPTIST CHURCH 11

9 280 E SQUARE LAKE ST ELIZABETH ANN SETON CATHOLIC CHURCH 13

10 1825 E SQUARE LAKE KENSINGTON COMMUNITY CHURCH 3

11 2601 E SQUARE LAKE EVANSWOOD CHURCH OF GOD 2

12 4850 JOHN R POLICE & FIRE TRAINING CENTER 12

13 2075 E LONG LAKE BETHESDA ROMANIAN PENTECOSTAL CHURCH 17

14 4571 JOHN R ST ANASTASIA CATHOLIC CHURCH 8

15 200 E WATTLES ST LUCY CROATIAN CHURCH 7

16 4328 LIVERNOIS FIRST PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH 16

17 760 W WATTLES ST NICHOLAS GREEK ORTHODOX CHURCH 15

18 5500 ADAMS ST STEPHEN EPISCOPAL CHURCH 9

19 2345 COOLIDGE ST ALAN CATHOLIC CHURCH 12

20 760 W WATTLES ST NICHOLAS GREEK ORTHODOX CHURCH 15

21 200 E WATTLES ST LUCY CROATIAN CHURCH 7

22 4571 JOHN R ST ANASTASIA CATHOLIC CHURCH 8

23 2442 E BIG BEAVER ST JOSEPH CHALDEAN CATHOLIC CHURCH 10

24 2160 E MAPLE ST GEORGE ANTIOCHIAN ORTHODOX CHURCH 14

25 2160 E MAPLE ST GEORGE ANTIOCHIAN ORTHODOX CHURCH 14

26 3179 LIVERNOIS TROY COMMUNITY CENTER 6

27 3179 LIVERNOIS TROY COMMUNITY CENTER 6

28 2345 COOLIDGE ST ALAN CATHOLIC CHURCH 12

29 3150 N ADAMS NORTH HILLS CHRISTIAN REFORMED CHURCH 16

30 3179 LIVERNOIS TROY COMMUNITY CENTER 6

31 6685 COOLIDGE HWY. TROY NATURE CENTER 4



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Draft December 7, 2007 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held Friday, December 7, 2007, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 
7:35 AM. 

ROLL CALL:  

PRESENT:  David Anderson, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  Timothy Dewan 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of October 1, 2007  

 
Resolution #EC-2007-12-011 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 

RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Monday, October 1, 2007, are APPROVED as 
submitted. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Election Inspector Assignments – Tuesday, January 15, 2008 

Presidential Primary Election 

 
Resolution #EC-2007-12-012 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 

 
RESOLVED, That Election Inspectors be appointed for the Tuesday, January 15, 2008 
Presidential Primary Election, as presented by the City Clerk, are hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Proposed Precinct Alterations and Relocations 

 
Resolution #EC-2007-12-013 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Draft December 7, 2007 
 

RESOLVED, That the Election Commission hereby RECOMMENDS the City of Troy 
alterations of precinct boundaries and relocation polling locations to the City Council for 
adoption as follows: 
 

PCT # BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION POLLING LOCATION 

1 
Section 1  Evanswood Church of God 

2601 E. Square Lake  

2 
Section 2 in the Troy School District Kensington Community Church 

1825 E. Square Lake 

3 
Sections 2, 3 and 4 in the Avondale 
School District 

Woodside Bible Church 
6600 Rochester  

4 
Sections 3, 4 and 5 in the Troy 
School District 

St. Elizabeth Ann Seton Catholic 
Church 
280 E. Square Lake 

5 
Sections 5 and 6 in the Avondale 
School District  

Woodside Bible Church 
6600 Rochester 

6 
Section 6 in the Troy School District Nature Center 

6685 Coolidge Hwy. 

7 
Section 7 in the Troy School District 
and Section 8 west of Coolidge 
Highway 

St. Stephen Episcopal Church 
5500 Adams 

8 
Section 8 east of Coolidge Highway Northfield Hills Baptist Church 

1800 W. Long Lake 

9 
Sections 9 & 10 St. Elizabeth Ann Seton Catholic 

Church 
280 E. Square Lake 

10 
Section 11 Kensington Community Church 

1825 E. Square Lake 

11 
Section 12 north of Highbury, east of 
Harbor, north of Willard, north and 
east of English  

Evanswood Church of God 
2601 E. Square Lake  

12 
Section 12 south of Highbury, west 
of Harbor, south of Willard, south 
and west of English 

Fire & Police Training Center 
4850 John R 

13 
Section 13 Bethesda Romanian Pentecostal 

Church 
2075 E. Long Lake 

14 
Section 14 St. Anastasia Catholic Church 

4571 John R 

15 
Section 15 St. Lucy Catholic Croatian Church 

200 E. Wattles 

16 
Section 16 east of I-75 and Section 
21 east of I-75 

First Presbyterian Church 
4328 Livernois 

17 
Section 16 west of I-75 and Section 
17  

St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox Church 
760 W. Wattles 

18 
Section 18 in the Troy School District  St. Stephen Episcopal Church 

5500 Adams 

19 Sections 19 and 30 in the Troy St. Alan Catholic Church 



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Draft December 7, 2007 
 

PCT # BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION POLLING LOCATION 

School District  3077 Glouchester 

20 
Section 20 and Section 21 west of I-
75  

St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox Church 
760 W. Wattles 

21 
Section 22 St. Lucy Catholic Croatian Church 

200 E. Wattles 

22 
Section 23 St. Anastasia Catholic Church 

4571 John R 

23 
Section 24 St. Joseph Chaldean Catholic Church 

2442 E. Big Beaver 

24 
Sections 25 and 26 in the Warren 
Consolidated School District and 
Lamphere School District 

St. George Antiochian Orthodox Church 
2160 E. Maple 

25 
Sections 35 and 36 in the Warren 
Consolidated School District 

St. George Antiochian Orthodox Church 
2160 E. Maple 

26 
Sections 26, 27, 34 and 35 south of 
I-75 in the Troy School District 

Troy Community Center 
3179 Livernois 

27 

Section 28 and Sections 25, 26, and 
27 north of I-75 and south of E. Big 
Beaver in Sections in the Troy 
School District  

Troy Community Center 
3179 Livernois 

28 
Sections 29 and 32 in the Troy 
School District 

St. Alan Catholic Church 
3077 Glouchester 

29 
Sections 18, 19, 30, and 31 in the 
Birmingham School District 

North Hills Christian Reformed Church 
3150 N. Adams 

30 
Section 35 in the Royal Oak School 
District and the Lamphere School 
District 

Troy Community Center 
3179 Livernois 

31 
Sections 6, 7, and 18 in the 
Bloomfield Hills School District 

Nature Center 
6685 Coolidge Hwy. 

 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Adjournment:  

 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:41 AM. 

 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



DISTRIBUTION OF VOTERS

WITHIN THE CITY OF TROY

CURRENT PROPOSED CURRENT PROPOSED

Pct.# Pct. # Troy Avondale Birmingham Bloomfield Royal Oak Warren Con District #13 District #19 District #20 District #24 POLLING LOCATION POLLING LOCATION

1 1 1143 1143 Evanswood Evanswood

2 2 2083 2083 Kensington Kensington

2 42 42 Kensington

3 828 828 St. Elizabeth Ann Seton

4 879 879 Faith Apostolic

3 540 540 St. Elizabeth Ann Seton

4 1169 1169 Faith Apostolic

5 867 867 Faith Apostolic

6 6 514 514 Nature Center Nature Center

5 974 974 Faith Apostolic

6 407 407 Nature Center

6 227 227 Nature Center

7 480 480 St. Stephen

18 36 36 St. Stephen

7 7 1681 1681 St. Stephen St. Stephen

18 18 1536 1536 St. Stephen St. Stephen

19 945 945 North Hills Christian

29 533 533 St. Alan

8 8 1794 1794 Northfield Hills Baptist Northfield Hills Baptist

9 9 2116 2116 St. Elizabeth Ann Seton St. Elizabeth Ann Seton

10 10 1791 1791 Kensington Kensington

11 11 1736 1736 Evanswood Evanswood

12 12 1317 1317 Bethesda Fire & Police Training

13 13 2638 2638 Bethesda Bethesda

14 14 1722 1722 St. Anastasia St. Anastasia

15 15 1683 1683 St. Lucy St. Lucy

16 16 1428 1428 First Presbyterian First Presbyterian

17 17 2169 2169 St. Nicholas St. Nicholas

18 182 182 St. Stephen

19 1240 1240 North Hills Christian

29 859 859 St. Alan

20 20 2038 2038 St. Nicholas St. Nicholas

21 21 1331 1331 St. Lucy St. Lucy

22 22 2332 2332 St. Anastasia St. Anastasia

23 23 2194 2194 St. Joseph St. Joseph

24 1272 1272 St. Joseph

30 1704 1704 St. George

25 25 1783 1783 St. George St. George

30 53 53 St. George

26 2480 2480 Community Center

24 332 332 St. Joseph

27 1131 1131 Community Center

28 28 1510 1510 St. Alan St. Alan

30 30 630 630 St. George Community Ctr-New Pct.

17535 23229 5331 8254

42806 3130 2281 743 630 4759 54349 54349
TOTAL VOTERS

SCHOOL DISTRICTS          COUNTY COMMISSIONER DISTRICTS           

Nature Center

St. Alan19

31

Woodside                          

OR Faith Apostolic

Woodside                          

OR Faith Apostolic
5

3

27 Community Center

St. George24

26 Community Center

St. Elizabeth Ann Seton4

29 North Hills Christian



campbellld
Text Box
E-07





































 

 

 

December 12, 2007 

 
Anthony Urbani 
Urban and Marshall P.C. 
25235 Gratiot Ave 
Roseville, MI 48066 

Re: Revocation of Nautical Mile Transportation’s Limousine Vehicle Permits 

Dear Mr. Urbani: 

 This letter is a follow up to our telephone conversation of Friday December 7, 
2007. As you know, the City Clerk revoked Nautical Mile Transportation’s limousine 
vehicle permits after the Troy Police investigation of your client.  The Police Department 
found that Mr. Saad allowed Gino Accettola and his company, On Time Service, to use 
Mr. Saad’s permits.  The Troy City Clerk had previously denied Mr. Accettola’s own 
request for a limousine vehicle permit, due to his several felony fraud convictions.  Your 
client’s business association with Gino Accettola and/or On Time Service, and the 
deliberate circumvention of the City of Troy limousine licensing procedure to facilitate 
Mr.  Accettola’s limousine business is unacceptable.      

 After discussing this matter with you and also your client, the City was willing to 
provide your client with the opportunity to prove that Gino Accettola was not involved in 
the operation of the Nautical Mile business before this matter was presented to the Troy 
City Council for its decision on the limousine license revocation.  Unfortunately, 
although both you and your client were apprised of the City’s requirements, there has 
not been a satisfactory resolution as of Monday’s deadline.  Your client did send some 
leases which were intended to demonstrate Nautical Mile’s control over the vehicles.  
Unfortunately, one of these leases was unsigned, one of the leases was for a car owned 
by Gino Accettola, and one was for a car that was already being leased by another 
individual, and likely had a lease provision that prohibited commercial use.  The City is 
still very concerned that Gino Accettola, a felon with fraud convictions, is involved in the 
operation of Nautical Mile Transportation.     

  Please advise your client that his “due process” hearing on his limousine license 
revocation is scheduled for December 17th, 2007 at 7:30 p.m., before the Troy City 
Council.  The Troy City Council will have the attached memorandum, written by Sgt. 
Robert Cantlon, for their information.   Mr. Saad will be given the opportunity to call 
witnesses, present evidence, and argument if he desires.  Sgt. Cantlon and Police 



Officer Kirk Linton will also be present at this meeting to present the factual basis for the 
limousine license revocation.   

      If you have any questions concerning the above, please feel free to call. 

 

Very truly yours, 

 

Christopher J. Forsyth 
Assistant City Attorney 
 
cc:  Philip Nelson, City Manager 
      Sgt. Robert Cantlon, Troy Police Dept.  
 

CJF/sc 

Enc. 
 

 

 



  
  

TO: Members of the Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
DATE: December 17, 2007 
SUBJECT: Goodman Investments, LLC  

 

 

 

 

 

 Grace Christian Learning Center, located at 2051 E. Big Beaver Road, is looking 
to expand as of January 7, 2008.  Since the approval process for the planned expansion 
could take some time, the owners have pursued an interim solution with the owners of 
the property to the east, InPro, located at 2095 E. Big Beaver Rd., which is owned by 
Goodman Investments, LLC..  Grace Christian Learning Center proposes to create a 
temporary space in the InPro building for up to 60 children.  There are no proposed 
exterior changes for the building, and no modification to the site plan that was previously 
approved.  However, there is a 1988 Consent Order and Judgment that limits the uses of 
the property at 2095 E. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI to those uses that were permitted in 
the O-1 (business office) zoning district provisions of 1988.  Childcare and daycare was 
not a permitted use in the O-1 zoning district as of 1988, the date of the Consent Order 
and Judgment, and therefore an amendment would be required to facilitate the interim 
expansion of Grace Christian Learning Center.   
 
 A proposed amendment to the Consent Judgment is attached for your review and 
consideration.  This amendment is limited to adding childcare and daycare as a 
permitted use for the Property.  If Council approves the language, then Grace Christian 
Learning Center would still need to comply with all other provisions in the Consent Order 
and Judgment, as well as all local, state, and federal laws.  They would also need to 
obtain approval from the State of Michigan for the proposed temporary expansion.   
 
 Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns about the proposed 
First Amendment to the Consent Order and Judgment.   

 

campbellld
Text Box
E-08



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
 

 
GOODMAN INVESTMENTS, LLC,  
Successor to HARVEY S. FINK, 
 
   Plaintiff, 
 
vs.        Case No. 84-275186 CH 
 
CITY OF TROY, 
 
   Defendant. 
_______________________________/ 
Goodman Investments, LLC 
David W. Goodman, In Pro Per  
2095 E. Big Beaver Rd.  
Troy, MI 48083 
(248) 526-3270 
 
Lori Grigg Bluhm (P46908) 
Attorney for Defendant City of Troy 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd. 
Troy, MI 48084 
(248) 524-3320 
_______________________________/ 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSENT ORDER AND JUDGMENT 
 

At a session of said Court held at the 
Courthouse, in the City of Pontiac, Oakland 

County Michigan, on:______________________ 
 

PRESENT:  HONORABLE  ______________________________ 
                                         Circuit Court Judge 



 WHEREAS, a Consent Order and Judgment was entered with this Court on 

January 6, 1988, governing the property located at 2095 E. Big Beaver Road in the City 

of Troy, Parcel Number 88-20-24-352-045 (Property); and  

 WHEREAS, Goodman Investments LLC acquired the property subsequent to the 

entry of the Consent Judgment, and now is the Successor in Interest/ Successor 

Plaintiff; and  

 WHEREAS,  Paragraph 1 of the Consent Order and Judgment allows the 

Property to be used for all purposes permitted under the City of Troy’s O-1 (office) 

zoning classification as of the date the Consent Order and Judgment was entered; and  

 WHEREAS, Daycare was not a use that was permitted under the City of Troy’s 

O-1 zoning classification in 1988; and  

WHEREAS, the successor Plaintiffs have been approached with a proposed 

Daycare use for a portion of the Property, and have therefore requested an Amendment 

to the Consent Order and Judgment to list Daycare as a permitted use for the Property; 

and  

WHEREAS, the proposed Daycare use does would not require a site plan 

amendment, or modification to the exterior of the building, since any such modification 

would be required to be reviewed by the City of Troy Planning Commission, as well as 

approved by the Troy City Council; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Troy does not object to amending the 

Consent Order and Judgment to enumerate Daycare as a permitted use for the 

Property, as long as there is compliance with all remaining terms and conditions of the 



Consent Order and Judgment, as well as compliance with other applicable City, State, 

and/or Federal laws or appropriate variances have been granted;  

NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to stipulations of the parties, who have had the 

opportunity to discuss this matter with legal counsel, and this Court being advised of the 

foregoing,     

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that all terms and conditions set out in the January 6, 

1988 Consent Order and Judgment, which is incorporated herein by reference, shall 

remain in effect, unless expressly modified by this First Amendment to the Consent 

Order and Judgment (Amendment).  

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Paragraph One of the January 6, 1988 Consent 

Order and Judgment shall be amended to read as follows, with the amended language 

indicated in italics:    

1.  The Land may be used for all purposes now permitted under the O-1 (Office 

Building) zoning classification under Chapter 39, Article XXV, Section 

25.00.00, et. seq., of the Troy City Code of 1988, as well as Childcare 

centers, nursery schools, or day nurseries (not including dormitories), as set 

forth in Chapter 39, Article XXIV, Section 24.30.07 of the current City of Troy 

ordinances, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this consent order 

and judgment and the sketch of the Land attached as Exhibit “B.”  Special use 

approval shall not be required for Childcare centers, nursery schools or day 

nurseries, as long as the site plan is not modified and the building is 

consistent with the approved site plan.   



IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a certified copy of this Amendment to the Consent 

Order and Judgment shall be recorded in the Oakland County Register of Deeds 

against the Property, and the terms and conditions of this consent order and judgment 

shall be covenants running with the land and shall be binding upon and inure to the 

benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court shall retain jurisdiction over this 

action.    

 

 
             
     ____________________________ 
      CIRCUIT COURT JUDGE 
 
 
Dated:  ______________________ 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and content: 
 
 
      GOODMAN INVESTMENTS, LLC 
 
 

____________________________  
David Goodman, Manager 
Goodman Investments, LLC 
In Pro Per 
 

  

Dated: ____________________ 
 
 
 CITY OF TROY 
 
    

By: __________________________ 
       LOUISE SCHILLING, Mayor 



 
 
 

By: __________________________ 
 TONNI BARTHOLOMEW, City Clerk 
 
 
 
                                                                By: ____________________________ 
                                                                       LORI GRIGG BLUHM, (P46908) 
                                                                       City Attorney 
 
 
Dated: __________________________ 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 3, 2007 

 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, December 3, 2007, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:33 PM. 
 
Father William Sinatra of St. Alan Catholic Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL  

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming Mayor 
Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 
a. On behalf of the City of Troy employee’s Casual for a Cause program, Carol Anderson, 

Parks & Recreation Director, presented a check in the amount of $417.67 to Wayne Reif 
of Troy People Concerned.  

b. Mayor Schilling presented graduates of Citizens Academy Class X Certificates of 
Completion.  

c. On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented a proclamation to Bud and 
Shirley Black recognizing the occasion of their 50

th
 Wedding Anniversary.  

d. Mayor Schilling presented the 100 Best Fleets in North America Award to Sam Lamerato 
and the City of Troy’s Fleet Division in recognition of the Fleet Division’s ranking of #2. 

 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 No Public Hearings 

 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Council Appointment to the Cable Advisory Committee 

 
Resolution #2007-12-333 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 3, 2007 

 

- 2 - 

Cable Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
W. Kent Voigt Unexpired Term 02/28/09 

 
Yes: All-7  
 

D-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File No: ZOTA 214) – Article X, Group Child 

Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts 

 
Resolution #2007-12-334 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
WHEREAS, On March 27, 2006, the Troy City Council recommended that Group Child Care 
Homes (with 7-12 children) be permitted by right in residential districts, subject to special 
conditions, and directed by City Administration to prepare proposed ordinance language;  
 
WHEREAS, On September 11, 2006, the Troy City Council postponed this matter until the first 
regular meeting in December 2007, or until the State of Michigan Department of Labor and 
Economic Growth, Bureau of Construction Codes (BCC) had clarified the applicable regulations 
for Group Child Care Homes;  
   
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan Department of Human Services (MDHS) is responsible for 
the licensing of such Group Child Care Homes; and the BCC is responsible for the 
administration of the Building Code provisions that are applicable to Group Child Care Homes;  
 
WHEREAS, As allowed by MCL 125.1508a, the City of Troy is the designated enforcement 
entity for all of the Building Code Provisions within the municipal boundaries of the City of Troy, 
and as part of the local designation, is required under State Statute to comply with and enforce 
all of the Building Code regulations;   
 
WHEREAS, MDHS and BCC have been meeting since this item was brought to their attention 
by the City of Troy, and have attempted to sort out the differing requirements between the two 
sets of regulations governing Group Child Care Homes;  
 
WHEREAS, MDHS and BCC have made progress in resolving the differing requirements 
governing Group Child Care Homes, but have not yet reached a final resolution; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has no authority to pass an ordinance that would supersede State 
of Michigan laws or regulations, and the passage of an ordinance in violation of the current 
Building Code regulations would result in violation of State law and could result in the loss of 
authority to administer building code provisions within the City of Troy, and/or could expose the 
City of Troy to liability;      
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Troy City Council hereby 

POSTPONES any action on Group Child Day Care Homes until such time as the State of 
Michigan MDHS and BCC have reached a final resolution on the differing requirements 
governing Group Child Care Homes.   



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 3, 2007 

 

- 3 - 

Yes: All-7  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Planning 

Commission b) City Council Appointments:  Employee Retirement System Board 

of Trustees & Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust and Municipal Building 

Authority   

 

(a)  Mayoral Appointments   
 
Resolution #2007-12-335 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Planning Commission 
Appointed by Mayor (9-Regular) – 3-Year Terms 
 
Mark Vleck Term Expires 12/31/10 

 
Wayne Wright Term Expires 12/31/10 

 
Yes: All-7 
 

(b) City Council Appointments 
 

Resolution to Postpone City Council Appointments 

 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES City Council appointments to the  
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities and the Charter Revision Committee until the 
Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, December 17, 2007. 

 

Vote on Resolution to Amend Resolution to Postpone 

 
Resolution #2007-12-336 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Kerwin 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 3, 2007 

 

- 4 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS resolution to Postpone City Council 

Appointments by INSERTING “Ethnic Issues Advisory Board”. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield   
No: Kerwin   

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

Vote on Resolution to Postpone as Amended 

  
Resolution #2007-12-337 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES City Council appointments to the  
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities, the Charter Revision Committee and the 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board until the Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, 
December 17, 2007. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Howrylak, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming    
No: Kerwin   

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

Vote on City Council Appointment to the Municipal Building Authority 
 
Resolution #2007-12-338 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by *None 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Municipal Building Authority  
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Michael J. Chaffee Unexpired Term 01/31/09 

 
Yes: All-7  
 
*Pursuant to Robert’s Rules of Order, Section 4 The Handling of a Motion, Article 30 “If a motion is considered and 
adopted without having been seconded-even in a case where there was no reason for the chair to overlook this 
requirement-the absence of a second does not affect the validity of the motion’s adoption.”



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 3, 2007 

 

- 5 - 

Vote on City Council Appointment to the Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees 

& Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust 
 
Resolution #2007-12-339 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Schilling  
 

Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees &  

Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust 
Appointed by Council (Defined Benefit Retiree Rep) – 3 Year Term 
 
William Need (Ex-Officio) Term Expires 12/31/10 

 
Yes: All-7  
 

E-2 Bid Waiver – Contract Extension – Alarm Installation, Monitoring and Maintenance  

  
Resolution #2007-12-340 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, On July 25, 1994, Troy City Council approved a five (5) year contract to provide 
alarm installation, monitoring, and maintenance with an option to renew for an additional two 
(2) year period to Vigilante Security, Inc. as the result of a 1994 RFP process (Resolution #94-
624), and extended yearly administratively under the same prices, terms and conditions; and   
 
WHEREAS, Vigilante Security, Inc. has offered to extend their contract under the same prices, 
terms, and conditions with the exception of the call-out hourly rate, whose increase was 
incorporated into the previous contract extension, and included any changes to alarm 
installations required;   
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to 
provide Alarm Installation, Monitoring, and Maintenance with Vigilante Security, Inc. of Lathrup 
Village, MI, under the prices, terms, and conditions as outlined in Attachment I, with pricing 
reviewed annually and adjustments allowed in accordance with the Consumer Price Index 
(CPI) for the Detroit-Ann Arbor area.  
 
Yes: All-7  
 

E-3 Sole Source – Lifeguard and CPR Supplies for the Troy Family Aquatic Center and 

Troy Community Center  

  
Resolution #2007-12-341 
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
WHEREAS, The American Red Cross is the sole known provider of Red Cross training 
supplies in Michigan; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 3, 2007 

 

- 6 - 

WHEREAS, The American Red Cross has been providing training supplies for lifeguard and 
CPR programs and classes at the Troy Family Aquatic Center and Troy Community Center 
since 2005;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to 
purchase American Red Cross training supplies for the Troy Family Aquatic Center, Troy 
Community Center, and Troy Parks and Recreation staff from the sole known provider in 
Michigan, the American Red Cross at an estimated total cost of $28,000.00, expiring December 
31, 2008. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

E-4 Reconsideration of Resolution #2007-09-278 (Item F-3) – Bid Waiver – 

Replacement of Two Police Canines  

  
Resolution #2007-12-342 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECONSIDERS Resolution #2007-09-278, Moved 
by Howrylak and Seconded by Lambert, as it appears below: 

 
WHEREAS, Two police canines are coming out of service due to age and health issues 
by December 2007;  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Police Department has had a long and successful relationship 
with the Oakland Police Academy K9 Training Center, in which all dogs are given an 
extensive physical exam and guaranteed for placement;  
 
WHEREAS, The Academy ensures the canines will have the proper temperament, 
drives necessary for police work, appropriate sociability, and ability to be properly 
trained; and 
 
WHEREAS, One replacement dog will be pre-trained, the other “green” or non-trained, 
to be trained by an experienced handler in the Troy Police Department; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal 
bidding procedures and a contract to purchase two police canines from Oakland Police 

Academy of Auburn Hills, MI, is hereby APPROVED at an estimated cost of $15,500.00.  
 
Yes:     All-6 
No:     None 
Absent:  Fleming 

 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 3, 2007 

 

- 7 - 

Vote on Resolution to Amend Reconsidered Resolution #2007-09-278 by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2007-12-343 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Resolution #2007-09-278, Bid Waiver – 

Replacement of Two Police Canines by STRIKING it in its entirety and SUBSTITUTING it with 
the following: 
 

WHEREAS, Two police canines are coming out of service due to age and health issues 
by December 2007;  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Police Department has had a long and successful relationship 
with the Oakland Police Academy K9 Training Center, and White Collar K9 who is the 
overseer of this K9 program;  
 
WHEREAS, The Academy and White Collar K9 ensure the canines will have the proper 
temperament, drives necessary for police work, appropriate sociability, and ability to be 
properly trained; and 
 
WHEREAS, One replacement dog will be pre-trained, the other “green” or non-trained, 
to be trained by an experienced handler in the Troy Police Department; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal 

bidding procedures and APPROVES contracts to purchase two police canines from 
Oakland Police Academy of Auburn Hills, MI, and White Collar K9 at an estimated cost 
of $3,500.00 and $12,000.00 respectively.  

 
Yes: All-7  
 

Vote on Reconsidered Resolution #2007-09-278 as Amended by Substitution 

 
Resolution #2007-09-278 
Moved by Howrylak     
Seconded by Lambert 

 
WHEREAS, Two police canines are coming out of service due to age and health issues by 
December 2007;  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Police Department has had a long and successful relationship with the 
Oakland Police Academy K9 Training Center, and White Collar K9 who is the overseer of this 
K9 program;  
 
WHEREAS, The Academy and White Collar K9 ensure the canines will have the proper 
temperament, drives necessary for police work, appropriate sociability, and ability to be 
properly trained; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 3, 2007 

 

- 8 - 

WHEREAS, One replacement dog will be pre-trained, the other “green” or non-trained, to be 
trained by an experienced handler in the Troy Police Department; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 

procedures and APPROVES contracts to purchase two police canines from Oakland Police 
Academy of Auburn Hills, MI, and White Collar K9 at an estimated cost of $3,500.00 and 
$12,000.00 respectively.  

 
Yes: All-7  

 

E-5 Contract Award:  Qualification Based Selection (QBS) – Integrated Financial 

System  

 
Resolution #2007-12-344 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to purchase an Integrated 
Financial Software solution from New World Systems of Troy, MI, the firm with the highest 
score as a result of a qualification based selection process, at prices contained in the tabulation 

and proposal documents opened November 19, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting for an estimated total five-year cost of $462,495.00, with 
optional software/services contained in the Request for Proposal negotiated at the time the City 
is ready to implement those applications; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the necessary 
purchases of server hardware and third party software utilizing approved purchasing 
procedures, with Crystal Report Server software being bought directly from the manufacturer, 
Business Objects of San Jose, CA, all for an estimated total cost of $55,610.00; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That ongoing software maintenance/support WILL CONTINUE 

annually and BE ADJUSTED each year after 2013, based upon verifiable increases in labor by 
using the consumer price index inflation calculator or CPI computation for the published Urban 
– CPI for the Detroit/Ann Arbor area between the base year of 2013 and the subsequent year, 

whichever CPI computation is lower, and to BE CONTINUED in future years using the same 
method;  
  

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the company’s submission 
of proper contract and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other 

specified requirements from which, the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to 
execute the contract when in acceptable form. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 3, 2007 

 

- 9 - 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

F-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2007-12-345 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Items F-2 and F-14, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

F-3 City of Troy Proclamation: 
 
Resolution #2007-12-345-F-3 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: 
 

a) Bud and Shirley Black – 50
th

 Wedding Anniversary 

   
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Home Chore Lawn and 

Yard Services    
 
Resolution #2007-12-345-F-4a 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide for seasonal 
requirements of lawn and yard services for the Home Chore Program with an option to renew for 
one (1) additional year to the low total bidder, Zimmerman Lawn and Snow of Roseville, MI, at 
unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened October 18, 2007, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with a contract expiration of December 31, 
2008; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Macomb County Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles    
 
Resolution #2007-12-345-F-4b 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES contracts to purchase one (1) 2008 
Ford Escape Hybrid FWD from Signature Ford, L-M Jeep of Owosso, MI, and one (1) 2008 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 3, 2007 

 

- 10 - 

Ford Taurus from Varsity Ford of Ann Arbor, MI, through the Macomb County Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement at an estimated total cost of $23,235.00 and $18,411.00 respectively.   
 

F-5 Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Long Lake Road to Square 

Lake Road – Project No. 02.203.5 – Parcel #17 – Sidwell #88-20-11-226-036 – 19 

John R Company 
 
Resolution #2007-12-345-F-5 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between 19 John R Company, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-11-
226-036, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road 
Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amount of $26,200.00, plus 
closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-6 Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Long Lake Road to 

Square Lake Road – Project No. 02.203.5 – Parcel #11 – Sidwell #88-20-11-226-007 

– Wattles Square, Inc. 
 
Resolution #2007-12-345-F-6 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Wattles Square, Inc., owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-11-
226-007, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road 
Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amount of $20,150.00, plus 
closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-7 Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Long Lake Road to 

Square Lake Road – Project No. 02.203.5 – Parcel #12 – Sidwell #88-20-11-226-006 

– Garrett Family Limited Partnership 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 3, 2007 

 

- 11 - 

Resolution #2007-12-345-F-7 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty of 
Public Purposes between Garrett Family Limited Partnership, owners of property having Sidwell 
#88-20-11-226-006, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road 
Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amount of $20,050.00, plus closing 
costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 

F-8 Private Agreement for 1-800-Mini-Storage – Project No. 07.927.3 
 
Resolution #2007-12-345-F-8 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and West Maple 
Ventures, LLC, for the installation of water main, concrete approach, underground detention 
system, and sanitary sewer lead connection on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-9 Application for New SDM License for Wal-Mart 
 

(a) New License 
 
Resolution #2007-12-345-F-9a 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Wal-Mart Stores East, 2001 W. Maple, Troy 48084, for a new SDM license with 2 direct 
connections; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

(b) Agreement 
  
Resolution #2007-12-345-F-9b 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 3, 2007 

 

- 12 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Wal-Mart Stores East, 2001 W. Maple, Troy 48084, Oakland County, for a new SDM 

license with 2 direct connections, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the 

document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-10 Application for Transfer of B-Hotel License to Hospitality Ventures Management, 

Inc. and RBHV Troy, LLC (Co-Licensees) 
 

(a) New License 
 
Resolution #2007-12-345-F-10a 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Hospitality Ventures Management, Inc. and RBHV Troy, LLC to transfer ownership of 2007 B-
Hotel licensed business with dance permit, official permit (food), outdoor service (1 area) 3 bars 
and 251 rooms, located at 850 Tower, from DJPONT/JPM Troy Leasing, LLC, Felcor/JPM Troy 
Hotel, LLC, and Promus Hotels, Inc.; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 

 

(b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2007-12-345-F-10b 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Hospitality Ventures Management, Inc. and RBHV Troy, LLC to transfer ownership of 2007 
B-Hotel licensed business with dance permit, official permit (food), outdoor service (1 area) 3 
bars and 251 rooms, located at 850 Tower, from DJPONT/JPM Troy Leasing, LLC, Felcor/JPM 

Troy Hotel, LLC, and Promus Hotels, Inc., and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 

execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 

F-11 Private Agreement for Rochester Professional Building – Project No. 06.935.3 
 
Resolution #2007-12-345-F-11 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Rochester 
Professional Building LLC, for the installation of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, detention, 
sidewalks, paving and soil erosion on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 3, 2007 

 

- 13 - 

F-12 Approval of the Sale of City-Owned Surplus Parcel to Tepel Land LLC, Section 26 

– Sidwell #88-20-26-477-042 
 
Resolution #2007-12-345-F-12 
 

RESOLVED, That City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty 
between the City of Troy, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-26-477-042, and Tepel 
Land, LLC, for the acquisition of City-owned property in the amount of $18,400.00, the 
appraised value, as outlined in the Agreement to Purchase; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the Agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-13 Approval of Purchase Agreement – 1660 East Square Lake Road – Sidwell #88-20-

 11-201-022 – Kensington Community Church 
 
Resolution #2007-12-345-F-13 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Kensington Community Church, owners of property having Sidwell 
#88-20-11-201-022, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of parkland in the amount of 
$230,000.00; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-15 Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreement – Big Beaver and Cunningham  
 
Resolution #2007-12-345-F-15 
 
WHEREAS, Per the Traffic Signal Maintenance agreement for the signal at Big Beaver and 
Cunningham, Kmart Corp. paid traffic signal maintenance costs for the signal; 
 
WHEREAS, Kmart Corp. moved out of the City in 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, Cunningham is a City Road and Big Beaver is under the jurisdiction of the Road 
Commission for Oakland County; 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 3, 2007 

 

- 14 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the cost 
agreement with the Road Commission for Oakland County and the City for the maintenance of 
the traffic signal at Big Beaver and Cunningham for sharing costs at 33-1/3% City and 66-2/3% 

Road Commission for Oakland County, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute 

the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-16 Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreement – Rochester Road and Woodside Bible 

Church  
 
Resolution #2007-12-345-F-16 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council approved a traffic signal at the intersection of Rochester 

Road and Woodside Bible Church in March 2007, with cost of installation and maintenance to 

be paid by Woodside Bible Church; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Road Commission for Oakland County requests a signed Traffic Signal 
Maintenance Agreement;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Traffic 
Signal Maintenance Agreement between Woodside Bible Church, the Road Commission for 

Oakland County and the City of Troy and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute 

the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
F-17  Steamers Café Contract 
 
Resolution #2007-12-345-F-17 
 
WHEREAS, On December 19, 2005, Troy City Council awarded a two-year contract for the 
operation of the Library café by Zeyn Francis of Troy, Michigan expiring December 31, 2007, 
which may be extended under the same terms and conditions, if approved by City Council and 
agreed to by the Café operators (Resolution #2005-12-554a); and  
 
WHEREAS, Zeyn Francis has agreed to extend the monthly rent of $750.00 for a period of 
one-year under new terms and conditions to expire December 31, 2008; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a one-year 
contract for Library Café Services to Zeyn Francis of Troy, Michigan based upon new terms 

and conditions listed in the amended Agreement, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk 

to execute the agreement once in acceptable form, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-14 Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Deficit Elimination Plan 
 
Resolution #2007-12-346  
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 3, 2007 

 

- 15 - 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES and ADOPTS the Sanctuary Lake 
Golf Course Deficit Elimination Plan presented to this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2007-11-347 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of November 12, 

2007 be APPROVED as corrected. 
 
Yes: All-7  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Rezoning Application – Proposed Rite Aid Pharmacy Development, North Side of Long 

Lake, East Side of Rochester Road, Section 11 – B-1 to B-2 (File Number Z-729) – 
December 17, 2007       

Noted and Filed 
 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced   

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
Council Member Beltramini distributed copies of Empty Houses and an additional Michigan 
Municipal League publication offering tips on avoiding foreclosures with additional guidelines 
on what communities can do to address this problem. 
 
Council Member Kerwin discussed an article from the City & County magazine publication in 
regard to saving gas. Council Member Kerwin asked whether there is movement toward using 
natural gas for vehicles in the City of Troy. 
 
City Manager Phillip Nelson replied that the use of natural gas, as well as propane, has been 
around for quite some time and that the city is currently researching different options for 
vehicles. Mr. Nelson added that the city is also looking at maintenance costs in the long run 
and consequently, it will take some time to assemble all of the information before a report can 
be submitted to City Council. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 3, 2007 

 

- 16 - 

Council Member Kerwin advised that almost 1,000 people attended the Hanging of the Greens 
event at the Historic Museum and encouraged the public to visit. 
 
Council Member Kerwin invited the public to attend the annual Tree Lighting Ceremony at 7:30 
pm in front of City Hall. 
  

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – September 17, 2007  
b) Downtown Development Authority/Draft – September 19, 2007 
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – October 10, 2007  
d) Library Advisory Board/Final – October 11, 2007  
e) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – October 16, 2007 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 23, 2007 
g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – November 7, 2007 
h) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – November 12, 2007  
i) Planning Commission/Draft – November 13, 2007  
j) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – November 14, 2007 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:   
a) Purchasing Department – BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-Thumb Auctioneering 

Services – October 2007 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Jim and Susan Werpetinski Regarding the 

Police Presence on Election Day and the Community Outreach Programs         
Noted and Filed 

 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

J-5  Calendar 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 3, 2007 

 

- 17 - 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 
 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:00 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

December 17, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

F-3 No Proposed City of Troy Proclamations      

 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03



campbellld
Text Box
F-04a







 

 
 
December 6, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Cathleen Russ, Library Director 
    Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 
 
SUBJECT:   Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award — 
    Architectural Services for the Troy Museum & Historic Village 
 

Background 
 
 On January 23, 2006, City Council approved Resolution #2006-01-022-E6, an agreement with the 

Troy Historical Society that delineated the process for the City of Troy and the Troy Historical 
Society to work together during a five-year capital fund raising campaign to expand the Troy 
Museum and Historic Village.  

 Covenant 5 of the agreement stated that the Troy Historical Society would select an architect/site 
planner guided by The City of Troy’s guidelines for best value selection procedures, from 
respondents to their Requests for Qualifications/Proposals.  

 On September 25, 2007, twenty-two (22) firms attended a pre-bid meeting at the Troy Museum 
and were provided access to the Niles-Barnard House. 

 On October 8, 2007, Requests for Qualifications/Proposals were received and opened to provide 
site plan and architectural services for the expansion of the Troy Museum & Historic Village. 

 207 vendors were notified via the MITN system, with eleven (11) bidders responding, five (5) of 
which did not meet the minimum pass/fail requirements.  

 Five (5) committee members, consisting of Mark Stimac, Building and Zoning Director, Loraine 
Campbell, Museum Manager, Ward Randol and John Lavender, co-chairs of the Troy Historical 
Society Heritage Campaign, and Terry Navratil, Historical Commission, reviewed and evaluated 
the remaining six (6) RFQ/RFPs. 

 The top three (3) firms were interviewed by the full committee on Friday, November 9, 2007. 
 Based on the scoring criteria of 40% Proposal Score, 40% Price Score and 20% Interview Score, 

the committee recommends awarding the contract to the highest rated bidder, Hopkins Burns 
Design Studio.  
 

1 of 2 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04b



December 6, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Best Value Award – Architectural Services for the Troy Museum & Historic Village 
 
 
 

Financial Considerations 
 
 Funds are available through the Troy Historical Society Heritage Campaign to pay for the site plan 

and architectural services and will be transferred to the City of Troy Capital Projects Fund to cover 
the costs in the Museum Capital Account for Land Improvements - #401804.7971.010. 

 

Legal Considerations 
 
 RFQ / RFP 07-27, Architectural Services for the Troy Museum & Historic Village was 

competitively bid and opened with eleven (11) bidders responding. 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest to provide architectural 

services for the Troy Museum & Historic Village expansion. 
 The contract award is contingent on the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contract and 

supplemental documents, including insurance certificates, and all other specified requirements. 
 

Policy Considerations 
 
 Enhance the livability and safety of the community (Goal I) 
 Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City government (Goal II) 
 Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs (Goal V) 

 

Options 
 
 City management recommends awarding a contract to perform the Architectural Services for the 

Troy Museum & Historic Village to the highest rated bidder, Hopkins Burns Design Studio, of Ann 
Arbor, Michigan, as a result of a best value process, for an estimated total cost of $219,265.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 



 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Architectural Services for the Troy Museum and Historic Village 

 
STATISTICS: 

 
 Two-hundred and seven (207) firms were notified via the MITN e-procurement website 

 
 Eleven (11) proposals were received 

 
 Six (6) firms met the pass/fail criteria 

 
 Three (3) firms were interviewed 

 
 Hopkins Burns Design Studio received the highest score as a result of a best value 

process  
 
The following three firms received the indicated final scores as a result of the 
interview, proposal and pricing selection criteria.  Only these three top rated firms 
were invited to participate in an interview.   
   
Firm SCORE 
Hopkins Burns Design Studio 87 
Ekocite Architecture 73 
John Dziurman Architects LTD 62 
  

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS – FIRMS ELIMINATED FROM FURTHER CONSIDERATION  
(BASED ON PASS/FAIL MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS) 
 

 George J. Hartman Architects, PC  
 Hobbs & Black Architects 
 Moody Nolan, Inc.  
 Frank McCormick & Khalaf, LLC Architects  
 Luckenback/Ziegelman Architects PLLC  

 
Attachments: 
 

 Weighted Final Scoring Including Proposal, Interview and Price Scoring 
 Evaluation Process 
 Original Tabulation 



 
WEIGHTED FINAL SCORING  

Architectural Services for the Troy Museum and Historic Village 
Final Score Calculation: 

 
20% x Interview Score 
40% x Proposal Score 
40% x Price Score                     
100%              = Final Weighted Score 

 
In order to equate the price to the weighted evaluation process scoring, the prices had to be converted 
into a score with the base of 100.  NOTE:  For the proposal and price evaluations, vendors are listed in 
the order of their cost proposal from lowest to highest.   For the summary and final scores the vendors are 
listed in order of rating from highest to lowest. For the interview evaluation the vendors are listed in the 
order they were interviewed.   

 

Weighted Average Score for Proposals: 40% 
Raters: 1 2 3 4 5 Average Final Weighted Score  

(x .40) 
Vendors:        
Ekocite Architecture 41 30 76 42 61 50 50 x .40 = 20 
Hopkins Burns Design Studio 100 89 89 97 94 94 94 x .40 = 38 
Ehresman Associates Inc. 38 56 78 64 65 60 60 x .40 = 24 
John Dziurman Architects LTD 62 70 92 77 60 72 72 x .40 = 29 
Hamilton Anderson 37 53 88 64 53 59 59 x .40 = 24 
THA Architects Engineers 85 88 85 83 94 87 87 x .40 = 35 
 
Weighted Average Score for Price: 40%   
RATERS Weighted Criteria – Difference in Costs 

{1-(Proposal price - lowest price)/low price} x available 
points 

Final 
Weighted 
Score  
(x .40) 

Vendors:   
Ekocite Architecture {1-(177,000.00–177,000.00)/177,000.00} x 100    = 100   100 x .40 = 40 
Hopkins Burns Design Studio {1-(219,265.00–177,000.00)/177,000.00} x 100    =   76   76 x .40 = 30 
Ehresman Associates Inc. {1-(253,600.00–177,000.00)/177,000.00} x 100    =   57    57 x .40 = 23 
John Dziurman Architects LTD {1-(265,500.00–177,000.00)/177,000.00} x 100    =   50   50 x .40 = 20 
Hamilton Anderson {1-(282,815.00–177,000.00)/177,000.00} x 100    =   40   40 x .40 = 16 
THA Architects Engineers {1-(422,000.00–177,000.00)/177,000.00} x 100    =     0     0 x .40 =   0 
 
 
Summary:   Proposal and Price Scores   
VENDORS:  Hopkins Burns 

Design Studio 
Ekocite 
Architecture 

John 
Dziurman 
Architects LTD

Ehresman 
Associates Inc 

Hamilton 
Anderson 

THA 
Architects 
Engineers 

Proposal 
Score 

38 20 29 24 24 35 

Price Score 30 40 20 23 16 0 

SCORE 68 60 49 47 40 35 

Only the top three rated firms were invited to participate in an interview.  
(Maximum # of points – 20 –) 
 



 
 
 
Weighted Average Score for Interview:  20% 
RATERS 1 2 3 4 5 Average Final Weighted Score  

(x .20) 
Vendors:        
John Dziurman Architects LTD 66 74 84 50 63 67 67 x .20 = 13 
Ekocite Architecture 76 67 87 30 72 66 66 x .20 = 13 
Hopkins Burns Design Studio 94 91 93 96 93 93 93 x .20 = 19 
 

 
FINAL SCORE:  
VENDORS:  Hopkins 

Burns Design 
Studio 

Ekocite 
Architecture 

John 
Dziurman 
Architects LTD

Ehresman 
Associates Inc 

Hamilton 
Anderson 

THA 
Architects 
Engineers 

Proposal 
Score 

38 20 29 24 24 35 

Price Score 30 40 20 23 16 0 
Interview 
Score 

19 13 13 N/A N/A N/A 

FINAL 
SCORE 

87 73 62 47 40 35 

**HIGHEST RATED VENDOR – RECOMMENDED AWARD 
 
G:/ Award 06 New Format / Best Value SR8 – RFP – Museum- Architectural Svc – WeightedRatingSummary 12.07.doc 



 
  

SELECTION PROCESS 
 
 
CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 
The identified Committee will review the proposals.  The City of Troy and Troy Historical Society 
reserve the right to award this proposal to the firm considered the most qualified based upon a 
combination of factors including but not limited to the following: 
 

A. Compliance with qualifications criteria  
B. Completeness of the proposal 
C. Financial strength and capacity of the firm 
D. Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
E. Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
F. Evaluation Process 

 
Phase 1:  Minimum Qualifications Evaluation 
Firms will be required to meet minimum established criteria in order to go to the second phase of the 
process.   

 
Phase 2: Evaluation of Proposals 
Each Committee member will independently use a weighted score sheet to evaluate the proposals; each 
Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.  The scores of the Committee Members will be 
averaged into one score for each firm for this phase of the process.   

 
Phase 3:  Interview Score – Optional-  
The City and the Historical Society, at their option, will invite at least the top three (3) rated firms to 
participate in an interview.  If less than three (3) candidates remain in the process, all will be interviewed.  
Each Committee Member will independently use a weighted score sheet to evaluate the Interview; each 
Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.  The scores of the Committee Members will be 
averaged into one score for each firm for this phase of the process.  Those being interviewed may be 
supplied with further instructions and requests prior to the interview.  Persons representing the firm at the 
interview must be the personnel who will be assigned to this project.  

 
Phase 4:  Price 
Points for price will be calculated as follows: 

 
        FORMULA:     {1 – (Proposal Price – Low Price) / low price} x available points 

 
Phase 5:  Final Scoring and Selection  
The firm with the highest final weighted score will be recommended to the Troy City Council for Award.   
 
 40% Proposal Score (100 point base)  
 40% Price Score       (100 point base) 
  20% Interview Score (100 point base)  

100%       
 
 
Note:  The City of Troy reserves the right to change the order or eliminate an evaluation phase if 
deemed in the City’s best interest to do so. 
 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 07-27
Opening Date -- 10/8/07 TABULATION Pg 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 10/11/07 ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES - MUSEUM

FIRM NAME: Ekocite Architecture Hopkins Burns Design Ehresman Associates
Studio Inc.

PROPOSAL:    TO PROVIDE ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES TO CONDUCT DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE TROY
MUSEUM AND HISTORIC VILLAGE EXPANSION PROJECT.

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: (Yes or No) Yes Yes Yes

SEVEN (7) COPIES (Yes or No) Yes Yes Yes

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Y or N Yes Yes Yes

PROPOSAL:    Schedule of Values NOT TO EXCEED NOT TO EXCEED NOT TO EXCEED
Cost for Scope of Work as Stated:

Phase I Not to Exceed: 20,000.00$                      31,370.00$                    8,400.00$                       
Phase II Not to Exceed: 14,000.00$                      11,275.00$                    8,400.00$                       
Phase III Not to Exceed: 16,000.00$                      11,275.00$                    7,000.00$                       
Phase IV Not to Exceed: 13,000.00$                      11,275.00$                    9,800.00$                       
Phase V Not to Exceed: 112,000.00$                    134,070.00$                  218,000.00$                   

Project Total Not to Exceed: 175,000.00$                    199,265.00$                  251,600.00$                   

Reimb Estd Exps Not to Exceed: 2,000.00$                        20,000.00$                    2,000.00$                       
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 177,000.00$                    219,265.00$                  253,600.00$                   

SCHEDULE OF VALUES: (Hourly Rates) UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
SERVICES: A - 100 Hr SHA - 150 Hr Planning & Design

S & MEP E - 165 Hr SA - 120 - 140 Hr 16,800 to 33,600
C E - 146 Hr A & LA - 75 - 100 Hr TA - 48 Hr
LEED - 110 Hr IA & ILA - 50 - 75 Hr AD - 62 Hr

SEE & SLP - 140 Hr LAD - 72 hr
ADDITIONAL SERVICES: Soil Boring by owner IEE - 65 - 85Hr PA - 79 Hr

SSE - 165 Hr / EE 85-110 Hr SA - 84 Hr
ME 90-110 Hr/CE 100-120/Hr Const. Docs - 5%
IME 70-90 Hr/Clerical 40-50/Hr Constr.Phase - 1.25%

REMIBURSEABLES: Cost plus 10% Est Amount $20,000 Photos - $1.00 /picture
Mileage - .40/mile
Delivery - Cost + 50%

Attached to Bid Copies - .15 cent ea

SITE INSPECTION Y or N Yes No Yes
DATE 9/25/2007 Unable to make site visit 9/25/2007

however visited prior to 
AIA DOCUMENT B431-1993 Y or N Yes Yes Yes

CONTRACT FORMS: Y or N Yes Yes Yes
               Legal Status & Non-Collusion

COMPLETION DATE: Can meet XX XX XX
Cannot meet

TERMS: Blank Blank Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Letter from Carrier re: None
areas of uninsurability

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

ADDENDUM #1 Y or N Yes Yes Yes

DMS:
George J. Hartman Architects, PC - Did not include Insurance Certificate ($300,000.00)
Hobbs & Black Architects - Did not meet insurance requirements ($375,525.00)
Moody Nolan, Inc. - Did not meet Insurance Requirements ($283,450.00)
Frank McCormick & Khalaf, LLC Architects - Did not meet pass/fail requirements ($260,000.00)
Luckenbach/Ziegelman Architects PLLC - Did not meet pass/fail requirements ($261,000.00)

NO BIDS:
Quinn Evans Architects Susan Leirstein CPPB
Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc. Purchasing Director
Lorri D. Sipes ATTEST:
Yamasaki Associates, Inc. William Boardman

Yvonne Ranzinger
G:RFP-COT 07-27 - Architectural Services for Troy Museum Linda Bockstanz



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 07-27
Opening Date -- 10/8/07 TABULATION Pg 2 of 2
Date Prepared -- 10/11/07 ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES - MUSEUM

John Dziurman THA Architects
FIRM NAME: Architects LTD Hamilton Anderson Engineers

PROPOSAL:    TO PROVIDE ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES TO CONDUCT DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE TROY
MUSEUM AND HISTORIC VILLAGE EXPANSION PROJECT.

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: (Yes or No) Yes Yes Yes

SEVEN (7) COPIES (Yes or No) Yes Yes Yes

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Y or N Yes Yes Yes

PROPOSAL:    Schedule of Values NOT TO EXCEED NOT TO EXCEED NOT TO EXCEED
Cost for Scope of Work as Stated:

Phase I Not to Exceed: 20,000.00$                           53,655.00$                          26,250.00$                           
Phase II Not to Exceed: 22,500.00$                           36,398.00$                          28,000.00$                           
Phase III Not to Exceed: 24,000.00$                           27,598.00$                          24,500.00$                           
Phase IV Not to Exceed: 25,000.00$                           30,298.00$                          26,250.00$                           
Phase V Not to Exceed: 150,000.00$                         126,366.00$                        315,000.00$                         

Project Total Not to Exceed: 241,500.00$                         274,315.00$                        420,000.00$                         

Reimb Estd Exps Not to Exceed: 24,000.00$                           8,500.00$                            2,000.00$                             
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 265,500.00$                         282,815.00$                        422,000.00$                         

SCHEDULE OF VALUES: (Hourly Rates) UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
SERVICES: P - 130 Hr P - 165 - 185 Hr  PM - 111.05 Hr

T1 - 90 Hr ASP - 135 - 155 Hr PA - 95.76 Hr
T2 - 80 Hr PM - 120 - 130 Hr E - 119.54 Hr
T3 - 70 Hr ALD-105-130 Hr/ALAD 75-105/Hr A CAD - 72.94 Hr
T4 - 60 Hr   C -50 Hr JDLD - 65 - 75 Hr E CAD - 62.40 Hr

ADDITIONAL SERVICES: Blank SID - 100 - 120 Hr CA - 94.64 Hr
I D - 75 - 100 Hr PMA - 49.05 Hr
JID - 65 - 75 Hr
SP - 80 - 105 Hr

REMIBURSEABLES: Expense of Postage Pl - 65 - 85 Hr Postage for mailings
Copies, Drawings, etc SGD - 90-05 Hr/GRD 70-90 Hr No charge for Mileage
Travel - .45 per mile SAS - 90 - 125 Hr and Phone
Expenses - 15% Ad Sp - 55 - 65 Hr

Attached to Bid
SITE INSPECTION Y or N Yes Yes  Yes

DATE 9/25/2007 9/25/2007 9/25/2007

AIA DOCUMENT B431-1993 Y or N Yes Yes Yes

CONTRACT FORMS: Y or N Yes Yes Yes
               Legal Status & Non-Collusion

COMPLETION DATE: Can meet XX XX XX
Cannot meet

TERMS: As stated in RFP Net 30 Days Lump Sum
Idemnif provision as stated is a

EXCEPTIONS: potential problem-see attached None As noted on Fee
Clarification

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

ADDENDUM #1 Y or N Yes No Yes



 

 
 
December 10, 2007 
 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 

 Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director  
     
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: US Communities Cooperative 

Purchasing Program – Landscape Structures, Inc. 
 
Background 
 
• Landscape Structures Inc. participates in the US Communities Government Purchasing 

Alliance Program with a contract award for Playground Equipment. 
• The equipment being purchased is four natural climbing boulders that will be installed in the 

grassy area between the entrance of the nature center building and the parking lot. 
• The natural climbing boulders will allow families both adults and children, to engage in 

environmental and outdoor recreation through physical activity that is safe, fun and 
educational.  The climbing boulders also blend naturally into the nature center’s surroundings 
providing a natural playground.  There are fossils embedded in the boulders that can be used 
for educational programs as well. 

• The four natural climbing boulders are made from glass fiber reinforced concrete that will last 
for many years.   

• The boulders are geared for children ages five through twelve, primary users of the nature 
center.  

 
Financial Considerations 
 
 Funding for the climbing boulders is available in the Park Development capital account for the 

Nature Center - #401770.7974.080. 
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
1 of 2 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04c



December 10, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: US Communities Cooperative Purchasing Program – Landscape Structures, Inc. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
• Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City Government. (Goal II) 
• Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs. (Goal V) 
 
Options 
 
• City management and the Parks and Recreation department request authorization to purchase 

four climbing boulders along with installation and engineered wood fiber from Landscape 
Structures, Inc. through the US Communities Government Purchasing Alliance Program for an 
estimated cost of $52,570.00.   

 
Prepared by: Stacey Yankee, Nature Center Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 – US Communities – Landscape Structures 12.07.doc 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 





Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
December 10, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director  
   James A. Nash, Financial Services Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – Exercise Renewal Option –                         
   Audit Services 
 
Background 
 On April 18, 2005, a three-year contract to provide Audit Services for the fiscal years ended  

June 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007 with an option to renew for three additional years was awarded to 
The Rehmann Group of Saginaw, MI, the vendor selected by Troy City Council as a result of a 
best value process. (Council Resolution #2005-04-182).   

 
 A letter is attached from The Rehmann Group indicating their agreement to renew the contract 

through December 31, 2010, under the same pricing structure, terms and conditions as the 
original contract.  

 
 Audits have been completed on time and the staff assigned has been proficient and 

knowledgeable, particularly with regards to recent changes in governmental accounting standards. 
 

 The City continues to receive the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 
from the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada. 

 
• Due to the best value process used in evaluating the request for proposal, a market survey was not 

done; since the City utilizes a selection process in which price is not the only factor under review.    
 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds are available in the various operating accounts for Finance, DDA, Block Grant 

Administration, and Brownfield Redevelopment.   
 
Legal Considerations 
 RFQ/RFP 04-60, Audit Services was competitively bid and opened with three bidders responding.   

 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04d



Page 2 of 2 

December 10, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Exercise Renewal Option – Audit Services 
 
 
Policy Considerations 
 The option to renew will support Goal II, minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and 

effectiveness of City government. 
 
Option 
 City management recommends the Troy City Council exercise the option to renew for three 

additional years with The Rehmann Group for an estimated total cost of $67,568.00, under the 
same pricing structure, terms and conditions, to expire December 31, 2010, in accordance with 
contract requirements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – AuditingServices 12.07.doc 











































 
   

November 27, 2007 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Fleet Vehicles 
  
Background: 

• Golling Chrysler Jeep Dodge, Inc. is the low total bidder in the Oakland County cooperative 
bid. 

• The vehicles being purchased are replacement vehicles for those sold at auction. 
 
Financial Considerations: 

• Funds are available in the Public Works Fleet Division capital account # 565.7981. 
                                  
ESTIMATED 

     BUDGET           UNIT COST    TOTAL 
 
 (2) Dodge Charger W/Police Package  $ 48,000.00  $22,252.00          $ 44,504.00 
     
                     ESTIMATED TOTAL   $ 48,000.00             $ 44,504.00  
 
Legal Considerations:  

• There are no legal considerations associated with this item.  
 
Policy Considerations: 

• The vehicles are used on a daily basis to assure proper and proactive Police protection and 
service (Goal I & V). 

• The purchase of the Police vehicles would assure the safety and welfare of citizens and 
businesses and also reduce the liability for the City. (Goal I & V). 

 
Options: 

• City management and the Public Works Fleet Division recommend awarding a contract to 
provide two (2) 2008 Dodge Chargers from Golling Chrysler Jeep Dodge, Inc. of Bloomfield 
Hills, MI, through the Oakland County purchasing agreement at an estimated total cost of 
$44,504.00.   

 
SPL\  S:\Murphy’s Review/Agenda 12.17.07 – SR4 – Vehicles Oakland County Letter 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04e



 

 
 

            December 3, 2007 
 

TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
  
SUBJECT:   Acceptance of Fireman’s Fund Insurance Company Grant 
 
 
Background: 
 
 The Fireman’s Insurance Company provides grants to fire departments in conjunction with their 

local sales agencies. 
 The Troy Fire Department received notification that it has been awarded a grant in the amount of 

$6,237.00. 
 This grant may be used equipment, training, and educational programs. 
  
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There is no match requirement for this grant. 
 The fire department proposes to use the grant funding to update public education programs,  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The City Attorney has reviewed the grant award documents and approved the grant compliance 

agreement for form and content. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
Approving this project addresses the following goals: 
 

 Enhance the livability and safety of the community.  (Goal I) 

 Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of city government. (Goal II) 
 
Options: 
 
 Approve the resolution to accept the grant from Fireman’s Fund Insurance Company. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-05











 

 
 
September 4, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Carol Anderson, Director of Parks and Recreation 
 
SUBJECT:  Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Municipal credits are state-authorized funds that are given directly to the Suburban Mobility 

Authority for Regional Transportation (SMART) to be divided among every city, township and 
village in Oakland, Wayne and Macomb Counties on a per capita basis.  Community credits are a 
direct result of the SMART millage that provides opt-in communities with additional funds.  

 
 Troy’s municipal and community credit dollars have been used to support the community based 

Troy Medi-Go Plus service.  Medi-Go Plus provided over 11,000 rides to 603 unique senior and 
disabled riders in 2006.   

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There is neither expense nor financial implications to the City for this program.  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There is no change to format and content of previous agreements with Medi-Go. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 These funds must be used for local public transportation.  Medi-Go provides door-to-door service 

and wheelchair accessible vehicles.  For these reasons, Medi-Go is well suited for our frail elderly 
and disabled population.  (Goal #1)  

 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-06



Options: 
 
 The City can transfer Municipal Credit funds in the amount of $76,084 and Community Credit 

funds in the amount of $106,432 to Troy Medi-Go Plus for the operation of transportation service 
for senior citizens and persons with disabilities. 

 
 

Where legal review is necessary: 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 







campbellld
Text Box
F-07













campbellld
Text Box
F-08













campbellld
Text Box
F-09











campbellld
Text Box
F-10











campbellld
Text Box
F-11









campbellld
Text Box
F-12













  
  

TO: Members of the Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: December 11, 2007 
SUBJECT: Kocenda v. Troy et. al.  

 

 

 

 

 

 Plaintiff David Kocenda filed the attached lawsuit against the City of Troy, Troy Police Chief 
Charles Craft, Captain Edward Murphy, Lieutenant Richard Hay, Captain Colleen Mott, Lieutenant 
Charles Pappas, and Lieutenant Robert Rossman.  Kocenda filed the complaint on August 31, 
2007, but didn’t serve the City and the individual defendants until November 28, 2007.  In his 
complaint, Kocenda alleges Defamation (Count I) and Intentional Infliction of Emotional Distress 
(Count II).  The lawsuit was filed in Oakland County Circuit Court and is assigned to Judge Fred M. 
Mester. 

According to the complaint, the Plaintiff, who is a police officer for the City of Troy, was 
offered a job as a police officer for the City of Palm Beach Gardens, Florida (PBG).  Co-Defendant 
PBG Police Officer Ellen Lovejoy then initiated an extensive background investigation and fitness for 
employment evaluation.  The PBG job offer was subsequently retracted.  In his complaint, Plaintiff 
alleges that the individual Troy defendant officers provided false information to PBG Officer Lovejoy, 
which led to the retraction of the PBG job offer.  He claims that as a result of remarks made by Troy 
police officers to PBG, his prospective employer, he has suffered damage to his reputation, loss of 
income, emotional distress, humiliation, mortification, embarrassment, sleeplessness, anxiety and 
other damages. He is seeking over $25,000 in damages, exclusive of interest and costs.  

 Absent any objection from City Council, we will initiate an aggressive joint defense of the City 
and the individual defendant police officers from Troy, and will file a Motion for Summary Disposition 
as our first responsive pleading.  If you have any questions concerning the above, please let us 
know. 

campbellld
Text Box
F-13

















      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

December 17, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
Memorandums and Future Council Agenda Items:  

G-1 No Announcement of Public Hearings 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

December 17, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 

 
Memorandums and Future Council Agenda Items:  

G-2 No Memorandums  

campbellld
Text Box
G-02



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

December 17, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced      

 

campbellld
Text Box
H-01



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

December 17, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced      

 

campbellld
Text Box
I-01



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE – FINAL SEPTEMBER 4, 2007 
 
This meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was held Tuesday, 
September 4, 2007 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. The meeting was called to 
order at 7:40 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT:    Kevin Lindsey 
   Kinda Hupman 
   Paul Lin 
   Bob Miller 
   Linda Rivetto 
   Charlene Harris-Freeman  
 
  STAFF: Loraine Campbell 
   
      GUEST:    Carl Freeman 
        2955 Quail Run 
        Troy, MI 
 
Resolution #HDSC-2007-09-001 
Moved by Harris Freeman 
Seconded by Rivetto 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of August 7, 2007 be approved  

Yes: 6  Lindsey, Hupman, Lin, Miller Rivetto and Harris-Freeman 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Above Ground Surveys 
No additional surveys completed. 
 

B. 60 W. Wattles - Request to expand boundaries 
The committee discussed a partial rough draft of the preliminary report and 
suggested revisions. Loraine will email the draft to committee members for 
further review and Kevin Lindsey will draft the Statement of Significance. 

  
 
New Business 

A. 4320 John R Rd 
It was brought to the attention of the committee that the resource known as Hill 
House is for sale. 
 

 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



2 

 
The Troy Historic Study Committee Meeting was adjourned at 8:45 PM.  The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, October 2, 2007 at 7:30 PM at the Troy Museum & 
Historic Village.  

 
 
                  

Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 

 
 

Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   September 26, 2007  
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC)  was held on September 26, 2007 at 7:00 PM 
at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver.  Kristin Randall and Nicole Vitale called the meeting to 
order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Disha Bora 

Maxine D’Amico  
Rishi Joshi  
Jessica Kraft 
Joseph Niemiec  
Anupama Prasad (Secretary) 
Kristin Randall (Co-chair) 
Shaina Sekhri 
Neil Shaw 
Katie Thoenes  
Nicole Vitale (Co-chair) 
David Wylie 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Geon Woo Kim 
VISITORS: Chris Crachiola, Teens Taking Action 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Coordinator 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2007-9-14 
  Moved by   Thoenes 
  Seconded by  Niemiec 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of August 22, 2007 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 12 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  1 – Kim   
 
3.   Attendance Report:  

Report reviewed by council members, no comments.   
 

4.   Visitor:   Chris Crachiola, Teens Taking Actio n (TTA) 
  -Discussed programs that the TTA are involved in including: 
   TATO – Tobacco 
   Sticker Shock – Alcohol 

Youth Dialogue Day – Held every other year and will involve middle 
school age students in 2008. 

   TTA meets every 2 weeks 
 7 Habits of Highly Effective Teens 

 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   September 26, 2007  
 

 2

5. Troy Daze Festival Update   
Review of 2007 event.   Comments were positive with some concern regarding 
the drop off area and signage.  

 
 

6. Teen Room Naming Competition  
-Discussed advertisement of competition and recommended emails, high 
schools, middle schools, community center and newspapers. 
-One month time frame for competition. 
-Would like Teens Taking Action and TYC to pick winner at a joint meeting. 
-Recommended prize is a gift certificate to Somerset Mall. 

 
 

7. Special Events and Projects for 2007-08  
Ideas discussed at August meeting have been presented to the legal 
department for approval. 
   

 
8. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provide d Advance Notification  
  Resolution # TY-2007-9-15 

  Moved by  Niemiec 
  Seconded by  Bora  

  
RESOLVED that Kim is excused. 

  Yes:  All - 12   
            No:       0  
  Absent:  1 – Kim   
  
9. Youth Council Comments   - None 

    
 

10. Public Comments  –  None    
 

 
11. Adjournment – 7:38 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Kristin Randall, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: October 24 at 7:00 P.M.  



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Final October 1, 2007 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held Monday, October 1, 2007, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 
5:06 PM. 

ROLL CALL:  

PRESENT:  David Anderson, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  Timothy Dewan 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of September 12, 2007  

 
Resolution #EC-2007-10-008 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 

RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Monday, September 12, 2007, are APPROVED as 
submitted. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Election Inspector Assignments – Tuesday, November 6, 2007 

General Election 

 
Resolution #EC-2007-10-009 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 

 
RESOLVED, That Election Inspectors be appointed for the Tuesday, November 6, 2007 
General Election, as presented by the City Clerk, are hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Ballot Language – Tuesday, November 6, 2007 General Election 

 
Resolution #EC-2007-10-010 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Final October 1, 2007 
 
RESOLVED, That the Ballot Language for the Tuesday, November 6, 2007 General 
Election, as presented by the City Clerk, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Adjournment:  

 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:08 PM. 

 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL October 2, 
2007 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was not held Tuesday, 
October 2, 2007 at the Troy Museum because of lack of quorum. 

 
 
The next regular meeting will be held, Tuesday, November 6, 2007 at 7:30 p.m. at the 
Troy Museum. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  

Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 
 
 
 

Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Nov. 1, 2007 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday,  
Nov. 1, 2007 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at 
1:00 PM. 
 
Present: Jo Rhoads, Member Pauline Noce, Member 
 James Berar, Member  JoAnn Thompson, Member    
 David Ogg, Member Merrill Dixon, Member  
 Bud Black, Member Betty Coven, Member 
 Frank Shier, Member Carla Vaughan, Staff   
 
Absent: None   
   
Visitors:  None 
 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2007-11-001 
Moved by Jo Rhoads 
Seconded by JoAnn Thompson  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Oct. 4, 2007 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 9       
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
None.   
 
 
Old Business 
  
Lunch Visits:  Betty Coven visited Royal Oak.  The food was good, but she had the last table 
number drawn and felt rushed.  The fee is $3. 
 
Path at Athens High School:  Carla reported that she did contact the Streets Department 
who has responsibility for that path, via email, but has not heard back from them.  She will 
follow up today and report next month. 
 
New Business 
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there were no suggestions regarding the senior 
program this month. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Nov. 1, 2007 

2 

 
Airport Rides:  JoAnn Thompson reported on various services available for transportation to 
the airport.   Bud Black is going to contact airport transportation services to get their rates for 
possible inclusion in the senior newsletter.  
 
Cancellation of December Meeting:  Merrill Dixon suggested cancelling the December 
meeting.  The majority of the committee wanted to have a meeting, so it will be held. 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board:  No report. 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that the Broadway Memories variety show will be held 
tomorrow and Saturday.  Seventeen people attended the first Caregiver’s Support group 
meeting.  Future topics for that group will include community resources, hospice, activities for 
those with dementia, and medication management.   
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that Medi-Go is talking about merging with another group to cut 
costs.  The service is going fine. 
 
OLHSA:  Pauline Noce reported that they had a speaker on identity theft. 
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  No report.  
 
Comments 
 
Merrill Dixon announced that the flu shot clinic and health fair will be November 14. 
 
Jo Rhoads suggested that contact information about attorneys that specialize in elder law be 
listed in the newsletter.  Jim Berar asked about the possibility of them placing ads, and Carla 
reported that at this time, we do not accept ads for the newsletter. 
 
David Ogg commented that the committee should not keep rehashing things.  They should 
decide what action to take, take that action and move on. 
 
Jim Berar asked about where the committee should get items to talk about. 
 
Betty Coven reported that her Cross Train Your Brain program is going great with 32 enrolled. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:17 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair               
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL November 6, 
2007 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was not held Tuesday, 
November 6, 2007 at the Troy Museum because of lack of quorum. 

 
 
The next regular meeting will be held, Tuesday, December 4, 2007 at 7:30 p.m. at the 
Troy Museum. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  

Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 
 
 
 

Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on November 13, 2007, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael W. Hutson 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Chair Schultz announced that eight members are serving the Commission until a 
replacement is appointed for the vacancy of Mary Kerwin, who was elected to City 
Council.  Chair Schultz thanked Ms. Kerwin for her participation and wished her 
well. 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-11-162 
Moved by:  Vleck 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as printed. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Littman, Schultz, Tagle, Troshynski, Vleck, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Strat 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

2 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-11-163 
 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the October 23, 2007 Special/Study 
meeting as printed.   
 
Yes:  Hutson, Littman, Schultz, Troshynski, Vleck, Wright 
Abstain:  Strat, Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
POSTPONED ITEM 

 
5. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 898-B) – Proposed Mausoleum, White Chapel Cemetery, 

South side of Long Lake Road, between Crooks and I-75 (621 W. Long Lake Road), 
Section 16, Zoned R-1B (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a review of the postponed item.  He addressed memoranda 
from the Building Department relating to code enforcement violations.  The Building 
Department reported the violations are corrected.  Further, the Building Department 
determined that the fence along Long Lake Road is not in violation of the Zoning 
Ordinance because it pre-dates the fence ordinance.  Mr. Savidant reported it is the 
recommendation of City Management to approve the site plan as submitted with the 
condition that the petitioner receives variances from the Board of Zoning Appeals 
and the Board of Building Appeals, as relates to the required 50-foot setback and 
construction of walls higher than 30 inches within the required setback. 
 
There was discussion on: 

 Principal structure of the business. 

 Existing fence and new vinyl fence as relates to the Zoning Ordinance. 

 Tree preservation and tree inventory waivers. 
 
Dennis Cowan of Plunkett & Cooney, 38505 Woodward Avenue, Bloomfield Hills, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Also present were David Krall, Vice 
President and corporate counsel for White Chapel; Don Root, architect, Integrated 
Design Solutions, 888 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy; and Marc Russell, landscape 
architect, Russell Design, 114 Rayson Street, Northville.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

3 
 

Mr. Cowan addressed the corrected code violations and the interior fences, which 
he indicated are not regulated within site plan approval.  Mr. Cowan respectfully 
requested approval of the site plan with the condition to obtain variances from both 
the Board of Zoning Appeals and the Building Code Board of Appeals.   
 
There was discussion on the following:   

 Demolition of vehicle storage and maintenance building in a future phase. 

 Design and material of sound wall; involvement of Michigan Department of 
Transportation (MDOT). 

 Elevations of sound wall in relation to principal structure. 

 Retention pond as relates to size, configuration and adequacy. 

 Existing fence along Long Lake Road, its screening and compliance to Zoning 
Ordinance requirements.  

 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
There was lengthy discussion on the preliminary site plan as relates to the 
designations of interior walls, fences, material, and key elements such as the water 
feature, and the purview of the Planning Commission for site plan approval.   
 
Mr. Miller stated the Planning Commission has the discretion to determine whether 
the preliminary elevations are sufficient to determine site plan approval, and they 
could require the petitioner to submit additional information should they deem it 
necessary to reach a determination.   
 
Several members shared difficulty in reading the landscape plan and correlating 
detail sheets and keynotes.  
 
Mr. Root provided a detailed description of the site plan design.  
 
Mr. Russell discussed the landscape plan in detail and offered clarifications to 
specific questions posed by the members.  He apologized for the confusion and the 
lack of correlation between the plan’s keynotes and detail sheets.  
 
Mr. Krall provided an explanation of the demolition designations.  Their intent is to 
show how the site plan would correlate to the City’s future Master Plan.  He 
indicated future phases would come before the Planning Commission for site plan 
approval. 
 
Mr. Strat commended the petitioner on the excellent quality of design and quality of 
the site plan application.  Mr. Strat expressed dissatisfaction with the plastic 
covering on the existing fence.  He believes the fence is a code violation, stating 
additional materials were applied to an existing structure.  Mr. Strat asked that staff 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

4 
 

look into the matter and prepare a report on the compliance of a structure that is in 
violation of setback requirements, and to which modifications have been made. 
 
There was clarification that preliminary approval of a site plan is valid for a period of 
one year. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-11-164 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed White Chapel Cemetery Mausoleum, located on 
the south side of Long Lake Road, between Crooks Road and I-75 (621 W. Long 
Lake Road), located in Section 16, on approximately 205 acres in area, within the 
R-1B zoning district, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Obtaining all required variances from the Building Code Board of Appeals and 

the Board of Zoning Appeals.  
 
Yes: Hutson, Littman, Schultz, Tagle, Troshynski, Wright 
No: Strat, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck said the site plan drawings are incomplete, and it shows a lack of 
responsibility on the part of the Commission to approve it as submitted.  He also 
stated that the violations on the site plan should be brought up to date. 
 
Mr. Strat said the design is excellent but the plan has flaws as relates to the front 
screen wall and the modifications made within the last few months. 
 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 729) – Proposed Rite Aid 

Pharmacy Development, North side of Long Lake, East side of Rochester Road, 
Section 11 – B-1 (Local Business) District to B-2 (Community Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed rezoning, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the rezoning request.  Mr. Savidant announced that a letter of opposition 
was distributed to the members prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.   
 
Ms. Troshynski asked which direction the store would face.  
 
Chair Schultz asked the Assistant City Attorney to address discussion of site plan 
issues at the time a rezoning request is considered.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

5 
 

Ms. Lancaster said members are not to consider site plan issues during the 
approval process of a rezoning request, but consideration should be given to all 
applicable uses in a specific zoning district.  She indicated the developer would not 
be bound by any commitments made relating to the site plan.   
 
The petitioner was present.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-11-165 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the B-1 to B-2 rezoning request, located on the north side of Long Lake Road, 
east of Rochester Road, within Section 11, being approximately 1.35 acres in size, 
be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN 
 

7. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Brycewood Site Condominium, 9 
units/lots proposed, East side of Evanswood, North of Square Lake, Section 1, 
Zoned R-1D (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site condominium.  He announced that a letter of opposition was 
distributed to the members prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Savidant 
reported City Management recommends approval of the alternative version of the 
preliminary site plan application that proposes 8 units and a 60-foot wide right of 
way terminating into a stub street at the southern property line.   
 
There was discussion on: 

 Setback requirements for side lots and streets in relation to neighboring 
properties. 

 Plan and alternative plan meet all requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 Stub street with respect to traffic and turning radius.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

6 
 

 Neighborhood interconnectivity.  The Planning Department prefers 
interconnectivity because it is better planning for future development. 

 
Carol Thurber of Fazal Khan & Associates, 43279 Schoenherr, Sterling Heights, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Ms. Thurber said a cul de sac would 
provide a quiet community; a stub street provides interconnectivity but promotes 
more traffic.  Ms. Thurber said they did not consider a layout where the street would 
be on the south side of the property, and confirmed that the lots to the south are not 
developed. 
 
Mr. Vleck said he has a hard time approving a development that proposes to place 
a sidewalk and street directly abutting existing residential.  He said it would be a 
detriment to the existing resident.  Mr. Vleck addressed the water run-off and 
drainage for the proposed elevations. 
 
Chair Schultz pointed out that the existing house to the north would become a 
double front (a corner lot) with the proposed street layout.  
 

Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Cathy Carolan of 6322 Evanswood, Troy, was present.  Ms. Carolan spoke in 
opposition of the proposed development.  She indicated their property would be the 
one that would turn into a corner lot.  Ms. Carolan voiced concerns with the close 
proximity of the street and sidewalk, density, neighborhood compatibility and drainage.   
 
Chair Schultz explained the subject property is zoned R-1D, and though the existing 
development of the neighborhood might be at a lower density than what is allowed in 
the R-1D zoning district, the property owner is allowed to develop to the density of the 
underlying zoning.  As an example, he cited if a house sits on one acre but they are 
allowed to put four houses on the one acre, that is the prerogative of the property 
owner.   
 
Ms. Lancaster confirmed that is a correct statement.   
 
Mike Carolan of 6322 Evanswood, Troy, was present.  Mr. Carolan spoke in 
opposition of both layouts for the proposed development.  Mr. Carolan said they do 
not want a corner lot.  He addressed potential hardships relating to property values, 
meeting required setbacks on both sides, and the sidewalk directly on the property 
line.  Mr. Carolan indicated he had conversations with the subject developer to buy his 
property and another developer who would build with lesser density.  Mr. Carolan 
voiced concerns with water run-off and flooding, capacity and maintenance of the 
retention pond, and compatibility and aesthetics of existing neighborhood.  He asked 
the Commission to consider tabling the item and to meet with the petitioner to arrive at 
a better layout.  He indicated putting the street to the south where there is no 
development might be a better plan.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

7 
 

Ada Griffith of 2666 Ronald Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Griffith spoke in opposition 
of the proposed development.  Ms. Griffith addressed concerns relating to 
compatibility with the existing neighborhood, traffic, and safety of pedestrians and 
children.  She would like to see the existing natural environment maintained.  Ms. 
Griffith submitted a written email from her husband, in opposition of the proposed 
development that was not forwarded to the Planning Department in time to be 
distributed to the members.   
 
Jean Dylong of 2638 Ronald Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Dylong spoke in 
opposition of the proposed development.  She submitted a petition in opposition of the 
proposed development, signed by 90 residents.  Ms. Dylong addressed density, water 
overflow and drainage, and neighborhood compatibility.   
 
Tim Ritchey of 2678 Ronald Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Ritchey spoke in opposition 
of the development.  He addressed concerns relating to neighborhood compatibility, 
density and property values.  Mr. Ritchey said he personally had a major water 
problem in his basement when the Carolan house was being built.   
 
Chair Schultz provided an explanation of a site condominium development.  He noted 
that the proposed lots would be the same sized lots that are currently on Ronald Drive.  
Chair Schultz said the water problem should be reported to the Engineering 
Department.  
 
Mr. Miller indicated on the map where the R-1D zoning district exists in that area, and 
said the same Zoning Ordinance requirements apply to all those properties, including 
minimum lot size.  He said the proposed development meets those standards, and 
that the property owner is exercising his property rights just as anyone else in that 
zoning district could.  Mr. Miller said the only way to preserve the area from being 
developed as R-1D would be to rezone it to a larger lot size, which would potentially 
reduce property values.   
 
Jane Erickson of 6205 Seminole, Troy, was present.  Ms. Erickson spoke in opposition 
of the proposed development.  She addressed the choppiness and inharmonious 
manner in which infill development has happened in Macomb County, and did not 
expect this of Troy.   
 
Jackie Hepp of 6136 Evanswood, Troy, was present.  Ms. Hepp spoke in opposition of 
the proposed development.  She addressed the existing water problem and 
maintenance of retention ponds.  Ms. Hepp said they have replaced their sump pump 
five times.  
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Comments from the members related to: 

 Hardship to resident whose property would turn into a double front lot. 

 Potential to develop site with the road to the south. 

 Density. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

8 
 

 Drainage and existing water problems. 

 Neighborhood compatibility. 

 Existing natural environment. 

 Potential to waive the required sidewalk to the north in lieu of a landscape buffer. 

 Cul de sac versus stub street. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-11-166 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That this item be postponed until the petitioner submits a plan that 
incorporates some of the comments made at tonight’s meeting.   
 
Discussion on motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Vleck suggested that the petitioner meet with property owners to the north and 
south to discuss alternative layouts. 
 
Mr. Miller said he has no objection to postponing the item to pursue other layout 
options.  He made it clear to the members that the Planning Commission is 
obligated by State law to recommend approval to a project that meets the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance requirements. 
 
Yes: Littman, Strat, Tagle, Troshynski, Vleck, Wright 
No: Hutson, Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Hutson said the developer is entitled to build a site condominium development 
pursuant to the plan, or alternative plan, because both submissions meet all the 
requirements of the Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Chair Schultz said the developer has the right to build the development as proposed 
because the application meets all requirements of the Zoning Ordinance.  He 
indicated he has no objection to the postponement and would discuss the item at a 
future meeting.   
 

___________ 
 
Chair Schultz requested a recess at 9:25 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:35 p.m. 

___________ 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

9 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

8. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 849-C) – Grace Christian Learning Center Proposed 
Addition, North side of Big Beaver, East side of John R Road (2051 E. Big Beaver), 
Section 24 – B-1 (Local Business) and P-1 (Vehicular Parking) Districts 
 
Mr. Tagle asked to be excused from discussion and vote on this item because his 
company has a financial interest in the matter.  
 
[Mr. Tagle exited the meeting.] 
 
Chair Schultz advised the petitioner that approval of the item would require five 
affirmative votes, and noted there are only seven members who would be voting. 
 
The petitioner, Rick Howard, indicated he would like to go forward with the approval 
process. 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan application.  He brought attention to the proposed exterior 
treatment as relates to Article 39.70.10 of the Zoning Ordinance.  He reported it is 
the recommendation of City Management to approve the site plan as submitted, 
subject to a maximum of 145 children to be cared for and detention to be provided 
on site in a manner approved by the Engineering Department.  
 
The petitioner, Rick Howard of 507 Misty Brook Lane, Rochester Hills, was present.  
Mr. Howard said he was not aware of the Zoning Ordinance requirement relating to 
matching the building façade.  He stated the building material has been purchased.  
 
Mr. Strat assured the petitioner he could preserve the building material purchased 
and add on to match the existing building material.  He addressed the proximity of 
the shopping center and major intersection in terms of improvements.  Mr. Strat 
suggested that (1) the front segment of the closed structure match the existing 
building; and (2) trees and vegetation be provided in front of the cyclone fence to 
buffer the fence and playground area. 
 
Mr. Howard agreed with the suggestions.   
 
Mr. Vleck agreed with Mr. Strat’s suggestions, and asked for a description of the 
screen wall on the north property line.   
 
Mr. Howard provided a history of the parcel in terms of zoning.  He said a screen 
wall would not be required if the area zoned P-1 was rezoned to B-1.   
 
Mr. Miller explained that the City intends to initiate a rezoning request to the B-1 
zoning designation for the P-1 parcel and the DTE parcel.  Mr. Miller said he was 
not sure if a screen wall would be required on the DTE parcel but if it is, 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

10 
 

construction of a screen wall would take place if and when future improvements 
were done to the property.   
 
Mr. Savidant stated the 4’6” high screen wall indicated on the site plan would 
comply with all Zoning Ordinance requirements.  He asked that the record reflect 
that the site plan submitted meets all requirements of the Zoning Ordinance.  Mr. 
Savidant said it was not City Management’s intent to mislead the Planning 
Commission, but to simplify site plan approval.  Mr. Savidant indicated the rezoning 
request would be considered at a future date when it is not tied together with the 
site plan approval process.    
 
Chair Schultz said he could not support the site plan unless the façade is 
compatible with the existing building.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-11-      
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the Grace Christian Center Proposed Addition until such 
time that the petitioner has the opportunity to design the façade of the proposed 
addition in accordance with our existing Zoning Ordinance requirements that 
require it to match the existing façade with the existing building, and further to 
provide vegetation to screen the cyclone fence. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Howard requested the Commission’s assistance to approve the preliminary site 
plan application at tonight’s meeting so he could go forward with the project.  He 
indicated his willingness to agree to any conditions that the Commission would 
deem applicable.   
 
There was discussion to approve the site plan at a future meeting, or 
administratively.   
 
Mr. Littman addressed the matching building façade as relates to residential 
purposes, and noted the subject site is quite a distance from residential.  He said 
the trees that the petitioner is willing to provide would solve the screening problem.  
 
Mr. Strat asked if the petitioner would be receptive to providing a stockade fence in 
lieu of a cyclone fence. 
 
Mr. Howard answered in the affirmative.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

11 
 

Mr. Strat withdrew his support on the motion on the floor, subject to withdrawal from 
the maker of the motion.   
 
Mr. Vleck withdrew the motion on the floor.   
 
MOTION WITHDRAWN 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-11-167 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Grace Christian Center Proposed Addition, located 
on the north side of Big Beaver, east side of John R Road, located in Section 24, on 
approximately 1.51 acres in area, within the B-1 and P-1 zoning districts, be granted, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. No increase in the number of children to be cared for, 145 maximum as per 

variance issued on June 17, 2003 by the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
2. Detention to be provided on site in a manner approved by Engineering 

Department. 
3. Building façade facing John R must match the existing façade of the existing 

building subject to approval of the Planning Department. 
4. Stockade fence will replace the cyclone fence surrounding the play area that 

faces John R on all sides. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Schultz, Strat, Troshynski, Vleck, Wright 
No: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Littman said he does not see the need for the petitioner to match the façade all 
the way around because the provision is intended to protect residential properties 
and the site is a long distance from residential. 
 
[Mr. Tagle returned to the meeting.] 
 
 

9. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 944) – Existing 466 Stephenson Hwy, Proposed Parking 
Lot Expansion, East side of Stephenson Hwy, North of 14 Mile Road, Section 35 – 
R-C (Research Center) and O-M (Office Mid-Rise) Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan application as submitted. 
 
Chair Schultz asked if the property acquisition and expansion of parking would 
cause a non-conformity for the parcel that is giving up the property for the parking. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

12 
 

Mr. Savidant replied the parcel would not become a non-conformity.  
 
James West of 7115 Orchard Lake Road, West Bloomfield, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. West indicated the proposed parking expansion and 
interior renovation is simply to create a better marketing appeal for potential 
tenants.  
 
Al Bayer, project engineer, of Nowak & Fraus, was present.  There was a brief 
discussion on the landscape plan and tree inventory. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-11-168 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Parking Lot Expansion at 466 Stephenson 
Highway, located on the east side of Stephenson Highway, north of 14 Mile Road, 
located in Section 35, on approximately 3.38 acres in area, within the R-C and O-M 
zoning districts, be granted.  
 
Yes: All present (8) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Ms. Troshynski congratulated Mary Kerwin on her election to City Council, and said 
she will be missed.   
 
Mr. Strat expressed his congratulations to Ms. Kerwin also.  He suggested a 
discussion on the City’s fence ordinance at a future study meeting.  Mr. Strat 
addressed a checklist of requirements for site plan approval and the submission of 
proposed site plans for rezoning requests.  
 
Mr. Wright congratulated Ms. Kerwin on winning her City Council seat, and said he 
will miss her.   
 
Ms. Lancaster wished everyone a very safe and happy Thanksgiving.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL NOVEMBER 13, 2007 
  

 
 

13 
 

Mr. Miller challenged the members to take a critical look at the proposed combined 
chapters of the Master Plan, the Future Land Use Plan and Urban Design Plan that 
will be discussed at the November 27 Special/Study meeting.  He wished a good 
Thanksgiving to everyone. 
 
Chair Schultz said he hopes to find a way to address the inordinate number of 
problems that appeared on paperwork submitted on some agenda items this 
evening.  He said he will miss his former Vice Chair, Ms. Kerwin, and wished her 
well on City Council. 
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:20 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Final\11-13-07 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     NOVEMBER 20, 2007 

1 
 

The Chairman, Mark Maxwell, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M., on Tuesday, November 20, 2007 in Council Chambers of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Michael W. Bartnik 
    Glenn Clark 

Kenneth Courtney 
Marcia Gies 
Matthew Kovacs 
Mark Maxwell 
Wayne Wright 

 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF OCTOBER 16, 2007 
 
Mr. Wright stated that the word “prohibited” be changed to “permit” in the motion for 
approval for Coy Construction on Page 4. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that he wanted the following added to the discussion on Item #6: 
 
“Mr. Bartnik asked if the owners and residents of the Somerset Park Apartments were 
notified of this variance request. 
 
Mr. Stimac replied that both owners and residents within 300’ of the subject property 
were notified.” 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of October 16, 2007 with the above 
amendments. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7  
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS AMENDED CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  JOHN BRODERICK OF THE HONEY BAKED 
HAM COMPANY, 1081 EAST LONG LAKE, for approval to place two temporary 
storage containers outside at the rear of 1081 E. Long Lake for the time period from 
November 21st through December 31, 2007 and November 21st through December 31, 
2008. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     NOVEMBER 20, 2007 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting approval to place two temporary 
storage containers outside at the rear of 1081 E. Long Lake for the time period from 
November 21st through December 31, 2007 and November 21st through December 31, 
2008.  Section 43.80.00 of the Zoning Ordinance allows the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
permit temporary buildings for permitted uses for periods not to exceed two (2) years. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if the Building Department had received any complaints regarding 
these storage containers in the past. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that he was not aware of any complaints regarding this request. 
 
Mr. John Broderick was present and stated he hoped approval for these storage trailers 
would be granted.  These storage trailers are the same as the ones that they have used 
in the past.  They will not be any higher that the brick wall that is behind this business.  
The storage trailers are needed due to the seasonality of the business. 
 
Mr. Clark asked what types of locks were used to secure these trailers. 
 
Mr. Broderick stated that they are specifically designed commercial locks. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are nine (9) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant John Broderick of the Honey Baked Ham Company, 1081 East Long 
Lake, approval to place two temporary storage containers outside at the rear of 1081 E. 
Long Lake for the time period from November 21st through December 31, 2007 and 
November 21st through December 31, 2008. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT APPROVAL CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  KELLI BALOGH, 1336 WACON, for relief of the 
Ordinance to maintain a porch enclosure constructed without a Building Permit that 
result in a 33.1’ rear yard setback and 3.8’ away from a detached garage.  Section 
30.10.06 requires a 35’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1E Zoning District and  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     NOVEMBER 20, 2007 

3 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Section 40.45.02 requires a 10’ minimum setback from this addition to the existing 
detached garage. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to maintain 
a porch enclosure constructed without a Building Permit.  The site plan submitted 
indicates an enclosure constructed with a 33.1’ rear yard setback and 3.8’ away from a 
detached garage.  Section 30.10.06 requires a 35’ minimum rear yard setback in an R-
1E Zoning District and Section 40.56.02 requires a 10’ minimum setback from this 
addition to the existing detached garage. 
 
Mr. Stimac further explained that a search of Building Department records indicated that 
this structure was in place since the 1960’s and there is no record of a Building Permit 
issued at that time. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if Mr. Stimac was 100% sure that no permit had ever been issued. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that a search was done of both Building Department records as well as 
Assessing records and nothing was found indicating a permit was ever issued. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what the difference would be if this structure was attached to the 
garage. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the 10’ rule would not apply, but then the garage would have 
to meet the 35’ minimum rear yard setback. 
 
Ms. Balogh was present and stated that she bought this home approximately three (3) 
years ago.  The porch enclosure was in place at that time.  The home has needed a 
number of repairs, which she has done. Ms. Balogh also said that she thought the 
original structure started out to be aluminum, all window enclosure.  When she tried to 
replace the windows and doors, she found out that they were no longer available.  Ms. 
Balogh brought in pictures showing how the house looked with the old structure and 
how it looks now with the newer structure.  Ms. Balogh stated that friends and family 
have done the construction of this new porch enclosure. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.   
 
Mr. Ryan Peters, 1337 Wacon was present and stated that Ms. Balogh has done a 
number of exceptional improvements to this home and feels that this enclosure will 
improve the look of the home.  Mr. Peters supports this variance request. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     NOVEMBER 20, 2007 

4 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that the structure appears to be the same size as the original structure 
and is not visible as there is a white picket fence around the property. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if a contractor was doing the work. 
 
Ms. Balogh stated that the work was being done by friends and family. 
 
Mr. Clark then asked if that was why a Building Permit was not obtained. 
 
Ms. Balogh said that was correct. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that if this request was for the original structure, he would have been 
opposed to it.   
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Clark 
 
MOVED, to grant Kelli Balogh, 1336 Wacon, relief of the Ordinance to maintain a porch 
enclosure that results in a 33.1’ rear yard setback and 3.8’ away from a detached 
garage.  Section 30.10.06 requires a 35’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1E Zoning 
District and Section 40.45.02 requires a 10’ minimum setback from this addition to the 
existing detached garage. 
 

• Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 
District. 

• Structure is shielded by a fence from surrounding property. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will add to the property value. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  GARY ABITHEIRA, 1110 BIRCHWOOD, 
EXISTING ADDRESS, TO 1106-1108 BIRCHWOOD, PROPOSED ADDRESS, for 
relief of the Ordinance to raze an existing single-family house and construct a two-family 
residence on a 9,600 square foot parcel of lance.  Section 30.10.09 requires a 10,000 
square foot minimum parcel size to construct a two-family residence in the R-1B Zoning 
District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a residential duplex.  The site plan submitted indicates razing a single-family house and 
constructing a two-family residence on a 9,600 square foot parcel of land.  Section  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     NOVEMBER 20, 2007 

5 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
30.10.09 requires a 10,000 square foot minimum parcel size to construct a two-family 
residence in an R-1B Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if Mr. Stimac knew the history of the homes in this area.   
 
Mr. Stimac said that he had done a search of the area and there are nine (9) duplexes 
in the area.  Three are in compliance with the requirements of the Ordinance.  Four are 
on 9600 square foot lots, and there is no record of variances being granted.  Three of 
these duplexes were built in the 1970’s and one in the 1980’s.  Two duplexes were 
recently constructed on 9,600 square foot lots and were granted variances by this 
Board. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked Mr. Abitheira if he had been before this Board asking for a variance 
to build two homes rather than a duplex on a lot that did not meet area requirements. 
 
Mr. Abitheira stated that was true; however, this area is more conducive to duplexes 
rather than single-family homes.  Mr. Abitheira also stated that the existing home is in a 
state of disrepair and is an eyesore to the area. There is Industrial zoned property very 
near this site and this is one of the reasons that people do not want to purchase a 
single-family home.  The housing market is down and Mr. Abitheira does not believe he 
would be able to sell a single-family home.  Mr. Abitheira also stated that he uses these 
duplexes to allow people to live in while they wait for their homes to be constructed.  He 
is trying everything he can to bring people to this area. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that Mr. Abitheira could build a single-family home for people to live 
in while they wait for the construction of their homes. 
 
Mr. Abitheira stated that he is trying to get people to come into this City.  The duplexes 
in this area look very nice and being kept up by the people that live in them. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that basically it is not economical to build one home but is more 
economical to have people living in two units. 
 
Mr. Abitheira stated that after reading the goals of the City Manager, he is trying to 
increase new development in the City. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Jack Bertoia was present and stated that he owns property on this street and is a 
resident of Troy.  Mr. Bertoia said that he is trying to lease the new duplex across the 
street and has been unable to do so because of the appearance of the existing home on 
this site.  Mr. Bertoia said that they want to bring quality people into this area and he 
believes this construction will help in doing so.  Other variances have been granted and 
he is in support of this request. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     NOVEMBER 20, 2007 

6 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Michael Agnetti, 1120 Vermont, was present and stated that he is in favor of this 
request.  People are taking care of the homes in this area and he believes this duplex 
will be an asset to the area. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There is one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Mr. Clark asked what the setbacks were for a single-family home and a duplex in this 
area. 
 
Mr. Stimac that the setbacks for a single-family home in the R-1E Zoning District were 
25’ front setback, 35’ rear setback and because it is on a corner there would be a 10’ 
setback from Lydia and 5’ along the east side of the property; the setbacks for a duplex 
are 25’ front setback, 35’ rear setback and a minimum of 10’ on the sides. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if this proposed construction met all the other setbacks. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that it did. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that he believes that the proposed construction also is less than the 
30% allowed by the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that 2,880 square feet is allowed and the proposed construction is 
2,829 square feet. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that this is still less than what is allowed. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that was correct it is less than the 30% allowed by 51 square feet. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that this area is very close to Industrially Zoned property and there is a 
duplex directly across the street.  Mr. Maxwell said that he believes this would be good 
for the area considering the location. 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Gary Abitheira, 1110 Birchwood, existing address, 1106-1108 
Birchwood, proposed address, relief of the Ordinance to raze an existing single-family 
house and construct a two-family residence on a 9,600 square foot parcel of land.  
Section 30.10.09 requires a 10,000 square foot minimum parcel size to construct a two-
family residence in the R-2 Zoning District. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                     NOVEMBER 20, 2007 

7 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 

• Variance request is small. 
• Construction will comply within other requirements of the Ordinance. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance would be unnecessarily burdensome. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance will not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning District. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Bartnik, Clark, Gies 
Nays:  1 – Courtney 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:07 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Mark Maxwell, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 27, 2007 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:33 p.m. on November 27, 2007 in the Council Board Room of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Lawrence Littman 
Robert M. Schultz  John J. Tagle 
Thomas Strat  Mark J. Vleck 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Zak Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-11-169 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Littman, Tagle and Vleck are excused from attendance 
at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All (5) 
Absent:  Littman, Tagle, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-11-170 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Troshynski 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as printed. 
 
Yes:  All (5) 
Absent:  Littman, Tagle, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 27, 2007 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-11-171 
 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Troshynski 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the November 13, 2007 Regular meeting 
as distributed. 
 
Yes:  All (5) 
Absent:  Littman, Tagle, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Wright gave a brief report. 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller gave a brief report. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller gave a brief report. 
 
 

STUDY ITEM 
 
8. CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN – CHAPTER 9 LAND PATTERNS – Discussion 

with representatives of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
Mr. Miller presented a photographic slide show of industrial buildings in Troy.  The 
intent of the presentation was to illustrate the challenge of determining future use of 
industrial properties in Troy. 
 
General discussion followed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 27, 2007 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Zak Branigan summarized changes made to Chapter 9 since the last meeting.  He 
then discussed the chapter section by section, providing an opportunity for Planning 
Commissioners to comment. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 

____________ 
 
Chairman Schultz called for a recess at 9:00 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:10 p.m. 
 

____________ 
 
The Planning Commission continued to discuss draft Chapter 9. 
 
Mr. Miller stated that Chapter 10 Implementation will be discussed at the December 4, 
2007 Planning Commission Special/Study meeting.  There will also be an opportunity 
to discuss other sections of the Plan. 
 
Richard Carlisle indicated a draft copy of the complete Master Plan would be 
distributed to the Planning Commission prior to the end of the year.   
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
There was general discussion related to the high quality of the draft Master Plan. 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:10 p.m. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 27, 2007 
  

 
 

 - 4 - 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Draft\11-27-07 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 

 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   November 28, 2007  
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC)  was held on November 28, 2007 at 7:00 PM at 
Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver.  Jessica Kraft and Joseph Niemiec called the meeting to 
order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Maxine D’Amico  

Rishi Joshi  
Geon Woo Kim 
Jessica Kraft 
Joseph Niemiec  
Anupama Prasad (Secretary) 
Kristin Randall (Co-chair) 
Shaina Sekhri 
Neil Shaw 
Katie Thoenes  
Nicole Vitale (Co-chair) 
David Wylie 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Disha Bora 
VISITORS: Cathy Russ, Library Director 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Coordinator 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2007-11-16 
  Moved by   D’Amico 
  Seconded by  Vitale 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of September 26, 2007 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 12 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  1 – Bora   
 
3.   Attendance Report:  

Report reviewed by council members, no comments.   
 

4.   Visitor:   Cathy Russ, Library Director 
  -Discussed purpose and structure of library: 
   5 million dollar budget 
   Something for everyone 
   Education for everyone 
   Expenses include staff, building and resources 
   750,000 people enter library every year 
   1.5 million items checked out yearly 
   92.5% of items checked out are by residents 
   Needs assessment currently being performed 
   #1 library in state in 2004 
   New special needs collection 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   November 28, 2007  
 

 2

5. Troy Daze Festival Update – No update   
 
 

6. Teen Room Naming Competition  
-Final edition of flyer was distributed for review by Teen Council. 
-Flyer will be distributed to Teen Council and Teens Taking Action for 
distribution. 
-Competition will conclude on January 15, 2008. 

 
 

7. Special Events and Projects for 2007-08  
Advised by legal that Teen Council is able to be involved in events run by a 
different group or committee but not able to spear head own event(s). 
   

 
8. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provide d Advance Notification  
  Resolution # TY-2007-11-17 

  Moved by  Randall 
  Seconded by  D’Amico  

  
RESOLVED that Bora is excused. 

  Yes:  All - 12   
            No:       0  
  Absent:  1 – Bora   
  
9. Youth Council Comments   - None 

    
 

10. Public Comments  –  None    
 

 
11. Adjournment – 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Jessica Kraft, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: December 19,  at 7:00 P.M.  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 4, 2007 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on December 4, 2007 in the Council Board Room of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael W. Hutson 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright  (arrived 7:37 pm) 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Zak Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-12-172 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Wright is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All (7) 
Absent:  Wright (arrived 7:37 pm) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-12-173 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as printed. 
 
Yes:  All (7) 
Absent:  Wright (arrived 7:37 pm) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 4, 2007 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-12-174 
 
Moved by: Troshynski 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the November 27, 2007 Special/Study 
meeting as distributed. 
 
Yes:  Hutson, Schultz, Strat, Troshynski, Vleck 
Abstain: Littman, Tagle 
Absent:  Wright (arrived 7:37 pm) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
[Mr. Wright arrived at 7:37 p.m.] 
 
 
5. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Miller gave a brief report on ZOTA 214 Group Day Care Homes.  At the 
December 3, 2007 Regular meeting, City Council postponed action on the item until 
such time that the State of Michigan updates the current regulation related to Group 
Day Care Homes. 
 
 

STUDY ITEM 
 
6. CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN – CHAPTER 10 IMPLEMENTATION – Discussion 

with representatives of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
Mr. Miller indicated that Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA) would provide a 
complete copy of the draft Master Plan to the Planning Commission prior to the end 
of the year.  
 
Mr. Miller indicated that a public input session would also need to be scheduled.  
Although the meeting would be open to all residents, the participants of the SGRAT 
workshop that started off the planning process would be invited.  
 
Zak Branigan of CWA presented Chapter 10 Implementation. 
 
General discussion followed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 4, 2007 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

7. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

8. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Strat asked about the status of the Maple Road Corridor Study.   
 
Mr. Miller indicated that if a digital copy were made available to the Planning 
Department, they would make copies of the document and provide it to the Planning 
Commission.  
 
There was other general discussion. 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:15 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Draft\12-04-07 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 

 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        Dec. 6, 2007 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday,  
Dec. 6, 2007 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at 
1:00 PM. 
 
Present: Jo Rhoads, Member James Berar, Member   
 JoAnn Thompson, Member   Frank Shier, Member 
 David Ogg, Member Merrill Dixon, Member  
 Bud Black, Member Betty Coven, Member 
 Carla Vaughan, Staff   
 
Absent: Pauling Noce, excused   
   
Visitors:  Paula Fleming 
 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2007-12-001 
Moved by James Berar 
Seconded by Betty Coven  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Nov. 1, 2007 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 8       
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Paula Fleming discussed school district news, handed out a list of school board members and 
circulated a menu from the Terrace Café. 
 
Old Business 
  
Lunch Visits:   Betty Coven said that the holiday lunch in Troy in November was wonderful.  
JoAnn Thompson said that Emerald has been working very well with the hospitality committee.  
 
New Business 
 
Medicare Part D:  JoAnn Thompson lead a discussion about the difficulty of having to decide 
which program to sign up for.  Carla reported that help is available at the Community Center.   
 
Meeting at Baker Middle School:  Jo Rhoads reported on a meeting that she attended at 
Baker Middle School put on by the Police Department about how seniors can make their 
homes safe for their grandchildren.  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        Dec. 6, 2007 

2 

Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there was one suggestion to add a third aquatics class.  
The winter session is free due to HAP sponsorship.  Usually we would not even fill one 
session, let alone three.  There will be a charge again in the spring.  If both sessions fill, we 
will try to add another one, but it would have to be in the afternoon. 
 
Airport Rides:  Bud Black reported that he contacted several airport ride services and this is 
what he found: 
 
Metroride 800-320-1683 $73 there, $79 back 
Checker Sedan 800-351-5466 $78 each way 
Detroit Metro Transportation 866-389-8294 $79 each was 
Carey Limousine 800-336-4646 $109 each way 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board:  No report. 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that the Cross Train Your Brain class was recently 
featured in an article on the front page of the Detroit Free Press.  The first winter session is full 
and we have added a second section.  SHARP (Senior Home Assistance Repair Program) 
now has an online bulletin board where volunteers can check for unassigned jobs.  Requests 
are referred to by job number only – names, address, etc. do not appear on line, and only 
approved members can visit the site.  
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that they have been very busy and things are going well.  
 
OLHSA:  No report  
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that they had a speaker 
about reverse mortgages and that seniors should have a legal person look things over before 
signing anything. 
 
 Comments 
 
JoAnn Thompson reported that the Restaurant Group has a nice outing at the Europa Bistro in 
Rochester in December.  The next outing in February will be to Kim’s in Troy. 
 
James Berar said that the front desk needs a list of which rooms activities are being held in.  
Carla said that room numbers are listed on the electronic bulletin board by each entrance and 
the front desk staff does have a list.  She will make sure everyone knows about it. 
 
Bud Black reported that he has a speaker lined up from the Library for the January meeting to 
talk about what the Library has to offer seniors.  
 
Frank Shier reported that the Heart-Of-The-Hills players would like to put on another 
performance here in February and he will get the information to Carla. 
 
Betty Coven reported that the Spice of Life discussion group that she leads at the Library is 
well attended.  It meets on Wednesdays from 10-11:30 a.m. 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        Dec. 6, 2007 

3 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:05 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair               
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Draft December 7, 2007 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held Friday, December 7, 2007, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 
7:35 AM. 

ROLL CALL:  

PRESENT:  David Anderson, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  Timothy Dewan 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of October 1, 2007  

 
Resolution #EC-2007-12-011 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 

RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Monday, October 1, 2007, are APPROVED as 
submitted. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Election Inspector Assignments – Tuesday, January 15, 2008 

Presidential Primary Election 

 
Resolution #EC-2007-12-012 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 

 
RESOLVED, That Election Inspectors be appointed for the Tuesday, January 15, 2008 
Presidential Primary Election, as presented by the City Clerk, are hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Proposed Precinct Alterations and Relocations 

 
Resolution #EC-2007-12-013 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Draft December 7, 2007 
 

RESOLVED, That the Election Commission hereby RECOMMENDS the City of Troy 
alterations of precinct boundaries and relocation polling locations to the City Council for 
adoption as follows: 
 

PCT # BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION POLLING LOCATION 

1 
Section 1  Evanswood Church of God 

2601 E. Square Lake  

2 
Section 2 in the Troy School District Kensington Community Church 

1825 E. Square Lake 

3 
Sections 2, 3 and 4 in the Avondale 
School District 

Woodside Bible Church 
6600 Rochester  

4 
Sections 3, 4 and 5 in the Troy 
School District 

St. Elizabeth Ann Seton Catholic 
Church 
280 E. Square Lake 

5 
Sections 5 and 6 in the Avondale 
School District  

Woodside Bible Church 
6600 Rochester 

6 
Section 6 in the Troy School District Nature Center 

6685 Coolidge Hwy. 

7 
Section 7 in the Troy School District 
and Section 8 west of Coolidge 
Highway 

St. Stephen Episcopal Church 
5500 Adams 

8 
Section 8 east of Coolidge Highway Northfield Hills Baptist Church 

1800 W. Long Lake 

9 
Sections 9 & 10 St. Elizabeth Ann Seton Catholic 

Church 
280 E. Square Lake 

10 
Section 11 Kensington Community Church 

1825 E. Square Lake 

11 
Section 12 north of Highbury, east of 
Harbor, north of Willard, north and 
east of English  

Evanswood Church of God 
2601 E. Square Lake  

12 
Section 12 south of Highbury, west 
of Harbor, south of Willard, south 
and west of English 

Fire & Police Training Center 
4850 John R 

13 
Section 13 Bethesda Romanian Pentecostal 

Church 
2075 E. Long Lake 

14 
Section 14 St. Anastasia Catholic Church 

4571 John R 

15 
Section 15 St. Lucy Catholic Croatian Church 

200 E. Wattles 

16 
Section 16 east of I-75 and Section 
21 east of I-75 

First Presbyterian Church 
4328 Livernois 

17 
Section 16 west of I-75 and Section 
17  

St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox Church 
760 W. Wattles 

18 
Section 18 in the Troy School District  St. Stephen Episcopal Church 

5500 Adams 

19 Sections 19 and 30 in the Troy St. Alan Catholic Church 



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Draft December 7, 2007 
 

PCT # BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION POLLING LOCATION 

School District  3077 Glouchester 

20 
Section 20 and Section 21 west of I-
75  

St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox Church 
760 W. Wattles 

21 
Section 22 St. Lucy Catholic Croatian Church 

200 E. Wattles 

22 
Section 23 St. Anastasia Catholic Church 

4571 John R 

23 
Section 24 St. Joseph Chaldean Catholic Church 

2442 E. Big Beaver 

24 
Sections 25 and 26 in the Warren 
Consolidated School District and 
Lamphere School District 

St. George Antiochian Orthodox Church 
2160 E. Maple 

25 
Sections 35 and 36 in the Warren 
Consolidated School District 

St. George Antiochian Orthodox Church 
2160 E. Maple 

26 
Sections 26, 27, 34 and 35 south of 
I-75 in the Troy School District 

Troy Community Center 
3179 Livernois 

27 

Section 28 and Sections 25, 26, and 
27 north of I-75 and south of E. Big 
Beaver in Sections in the Troy 
School District  

Troy Community Center 
3179 Livernois 

28 
Sections 29 and 32 in the Troy 
School District 

St. Alan Catholic Church 
3077 Glouchester 

29 
Sections 18, 19, 30, and 31 in the 
Birmingham School District 

North Hills Christian Reformed Church 
3150 N. Adams 

30 
Section 35 in the Royal Oak School 
District and the Lamphere School 
District 

Troy Community Center 
3179 Livernois 

31 
Sections 6, 7, and 18 in the 
Bloomfield Hills School District 

Nature Center 
6685 Coolidge Hwy. 

 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Adjournment:  

 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:41 AM. 

 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



DATE:            December 3, 2007
TO:                Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager
FROM:           Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:      Permits issued during the Month of November 2007

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Fnd./Shell New 1 $3,500,000.00 $19,645.00
Add/Alter 6 $347,474.00 $3,020.00
Wreck 1 $0.00 $100.00

Sub Total 8 $3,847,474.00 $22,765.00

COMMERCIAL
Tenant Completion 2 $195,000.00 $1,655.00
Add/Alter 30 $6,216,125.00 $41,481.00
Kiosk 7 $0.00 $245.00

Sub Total 39 $6,411,125.00 $43,381.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 2 $327,723.00 $2,593.00
Add/Alter 27 $725,700.00 $7,442.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 7 $34,750.00 $813.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 1 $4,500.00 $115.00
Repair 1 $2,500.00 $75.00
Fnd./Slab/Footing 1 $2,500.00 $75.00

Sub Total 39 $1,097,673.00 $11,113.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
New 1 $5,000,000.00 $27,145.00

Sub Total 1 $5,000,000.00 $27,145.00

RELIGIOUS
Add/Alter 1 $30,000.00 $355.00

Sub Total 1 $30,000.00 $355.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 33 $0.00 $3,400.00
Fences 15 $0.00 $235.00

Sub Total 48 $0.00 $3,635.00

TOTAL 136 $16,386,272.00 $108,394.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2007
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 267 $2,670.00
Cert. of Occupancy 38 $4,750.70
Plan Review 80 $7,048.00
Microfilm 39 $359.00
Building Permits 136 $108,394.00
Electrical Permits 179 $9,751.00
Heating Permits 130 $6,275.00
Air Cond. Permits 39 $2,580.00
Refrigeration Permits 1 $280.00
Plumbing Permits 102 $10,084.00
Storm Sewer Permits 1 $25.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 15 $459.00
Sewer Taps 8 $23,312.00

TOTAL 1035 $175,987.70

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2007
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 50 $250.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 10 $150.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 17 $17.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 3 $30.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 2 $20.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 10 $100.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 2 $0.00

TOTAL 94 $567.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2006 2006 2007 2007

JANUARY 116 $7,273,163.00 119 $7,595,008.00

FEBRUARY 94 $6,659,691.00 101 $8,056,092.00

MARCH 127 $5,629,425.00 135 $9,204,932.00

APRIL 174 $5,766,996.00 140 $4,844,929.00

MAY 216 $11,290,598.00 170 $11,201,261.00

JUNE 218 $10,681,352.00 183 $6,057,272.00

JULY 198 $11,269,902.00 134 $5,755,737.00

AUGUST 150 $14,170,725.00 149 $10,867,085.00

SEPTEMBER 161 $12,827,192.00 151 $15,498,043.00

OCTOBER 134 $10,733,680.00 194 $13,663,761.00

NOVEMBER 111 $6,690,950.00 136 $16,386,272.00

DECEMBER 94 $10,508,219.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 1793 $113,501,893.00 1612 $109,130,392.00



2004 2004

6 5 9 6 7 5 7
20
30
40
50
60

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2007

6 5 3
9 6 7 4 5 3 7

2
0

10

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
…

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Dec 3, 2007 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2007Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter TRI-NORTH BUILDERS 710 E BIG BEAVER  4,000,000
Commercial, Add/Alter COMFORT CRAFT CONST CO 5700 CROOKS 450  180,839
Commercial, Add/Alter COMFORT CRAFT CONST CO 1975 TECHNOLOGY J  244,276
Commercial, Add/Alter RONNISCH CONSTRUCTION 5600 CROOKS  145,289
Commercial, Add/Alter SYNERGY GROUP 840 W LONG LAKE 400  250,000
Commercial, Add/Alter SACHSE CONSTRUCTION 1650 W BIG BEAVER 200  116,280
Commercial, Add/Alter SACHSE CONSTRUCTION 1650 W BIG BEAVER 200  116,280
Commercial, Add/Alter SACHSE CONSTRUCTION 1650 W BIG BEAVER 102  348,840

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  5,401,804

Industrial, Add/Alter LAFORCE INC 289 ROBBINS  215,000

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  215,000

Industrial, Fnd./Shell New KEMP BUILDING AND DEVELOPMENT 2477 W MAPLE  3,500,000

Industrial, Fnd./Shell NewTotal  3,500,000

Inst./Hosp., New Construction SKANSKA USA BUILDERS INC 44201 DEQUINDRE ShipRec  5,000,000

Inst./Hosp., New ConstructionTotal  5,000,000

Total Valuation:  14,116,804Records  12



campbellld
Text Box
J-02b





























campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



campbellld
Text Box
J-03d



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

December 17, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

J-4 No Proposed Proclamations-Resolutions from Other Organizations      

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-04



campbellld
Text Box
J-05



campbellld
Text Box
J-06



December 10, 2007 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Administration and Finance 
      Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Report ‐ The Re‐greening of Troy Program 
 
The Parks and Recreation staff would like to provide details of a program that will be 
unveiled in the Spring issue of Troy Today setting up a mechanism for individuals, 
businesses, organizations, or groups to sponsor the planting of a tree, or trees in one of 
Troy’s city parks. 
 
Background 
The Parks and Recreation Department has received requests in the past for permission 
to plant a tree on municipal property, usually in memory of a family member or friend. 
The process has been for the person making the request to supply the tree and 
coordinate the planting through an established tree contractor or landscaper. The City 
would provide permission for the planting and the specific location for the memorial 
tree. 
 
The Proposal 
The newly proposed program, entitled The Re‐Greening of Troy, is in response to the 
thousands of trees lost in our parks from the Emerald Ash Borer, as well as a recent a 
request from a Troy business wishing to plant trees in a city park to help offset their 
carbon footprint as part of their “green” philosophy.  
 
The program establishes a simple procedure for sponsoring the planting of a tree, or 
trees in a Troy city park. With the submission of the order form and a check for the 
appropriate amount, the city will make the best choice based on the size of tree(s) 
selected and have the tree(s) planted in a City park. A Thank You certificate will be 
mailed to the sponsor, and on approval, the sponsoring information will be included in 
the next available issue of Troy Today. 
 
This program will be promoted in the Troy Today, as well as on the Parks and Recreation 
page of the City of Troy website. 
 
Absent any objection, staff will proceed with implementing The Re‐greening of Troy 
program. 
 
Prepared by:  Jeff Biegler, Superintendent of Parks 
 
 
 

Attachment: The Re‐greening of Troy Info/Order Form 

campbellld
Text Box
J-07



The re-greening of Troy! 
 
Sponsor the planting of a tree(s) in Troy.   Why? 
• One acre of forest absorbs six tons of carbon dioxide and puts out four 

tons of oxygen. Enough to meet the annual needs of 18 people.—U.S. 
Department of Agriculture 

• Trees provide natural habitat for animals and other plants. 
• Trees can stimulate economic development, attracting new business and tourism.  —The Arbor Day 

Foundation 
• Tree plantings improved water quality, resulting in less runoff and erosion.—USDA Forest Service 

• Trees remove other pollutants by absorbing them through the leaf surface.  Some of these pollutants 
include: sulfur dioxide, ozone, nitrogen oxides, and particulates.  

Where will these trees be planted?  The emerald ash borer has altered the appearance of our 
parks by killing thousands of trees.  Donated trees will re-forest City parks.   

Who can sponsor trees? Any individual, business, organization, group, or corporation can 
sponsor trees!  

How do I sponsor a tree? 

• Review the tree list.  Select the size / quantity you wish to sponsor.  We do not list tree types, as the 
City will make the best choice based on the size you select, varieties available and tree types found 
in the parks being planted.  Please allow a minimum of 60 days for the planting.   

• Fill out the attached form and mail it with your check. 

You will be sent a certificate indicating the size / number of trees and name of the park.    

Can I put a memorial marker on a tree?  We are unable to place markers.  They will be damaged 
by the mowers and gradually covered over with dirt, grass and mulch.  However, if you check off 
the Please Publish box, your information will be included in the next issue of “Troy Today”! 

Qty  Qty  Qty  
 7 gal. tree             $75.00 ea.  10 gal.  tree         $125.00 ea.  15 gal. tree         $175.00 ea. 
 20 gal. tree         $225.00 ea.   25 gal. tree          $260.00 ea.  3” to 3.5” tree    $300.00 ea. 
 3.5” – 4” tree     $350.00 ea.  4” to 4.5”             $450.00 ea.   

Total enclosed $___________________________ Sponsor Phone #__________________________ 

Sponsor Name(s) (please print) ___________________________________________________________ 

Sponsor Address ____________________________________________________________________ 

 In Honor of In Memory of Dedicated to   Please Publish 

___________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________ 

Parks and Recreation – 3179 Livernois, Troy  Mi  48083-9029 248-524-3484 



December 10, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Administration and Finance 
      Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Report ‐ Civic Center Priority Task Force Development Update 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
In July of 2004, City Council accepted a report from the Civic Center Priority Task Force 
(CCPTF) identifying and prioritizing site plan elements for the grounds of the Civic Center 
Complex. Those elements include paths and walkways, winter activities area, 
amphitheater, fountain plaza, enhanced gardens, and a greenbelt along Town Center 
Drive. It was expected that the design elements would be implemented over time and 
that improvements would encourage use by Troy residents, businesses, and visitors. The 
CCPTF report also cited the goals of the plan to increase the residential and business 
utilization of the Civic Center, and to develop a park and campus setting. 
 
TO DATE 
Paths and Walkways 
In 2006, asphalt pathways were installed linking the main buildings of City Hall with the 
Community Center as well as encircling the green space to the west of the Community 
Center. Since installation, the pathways have enjoyed increased interest from residents, 
City employees, and Marriot Hotel guests. Additional pathways are planned for the 
Enhanced Garden area this year. 
 
Ice Skating Rink 
One design element identified in the CCPTF was a refrigerated ice skating rink serving as 
a central gathering space for winter activities at the Civic Center. The rink was 
envisioned as a destination for children, teens, adults, and seniors to enjoy a unique 
winter activity not otherwise provided in Troy. Funds for this element are allocated in 
the 07‐08 budget. 
 
In recent months, a development has been proposed by the Pavilions of Troy located at 
the former Kmart Headquarters site at Big Beaver Road and Coolidge Highway which will 
include an outdoor refrigerated ice rink in the central plaza of the development. In light 
of this project, and with the anticipated operating costs of an outdoor rink, it is 
proposed that the ice skating element be postponed until the Pavilions project is 
complete. At that time, the municipal ice skating project can be re‐evaluated. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-08



Enhanced Gardens 
Some progress has been made on the Enhanced Gardens area. Last year the site was re‐
graded, undesirable trees and brush were removed, the stream bank was stabilized, and 
the re‐graded area was hydroseeded with turf grass. 
 
Part of the funding allocated for the ice skating area will be reallocated for further 
improvements to the gardens. The improvements proposed for this year are the 
installation of a hard‐surface pathway throughout the site, benches and picnic tables, 
small picnic shelter and restroom building. Desirable plant material will be introduced 
along pathways to create a pleasing and tranquil experience for those wishing to spend 
time with a contemplative stroll, quiet lunch, or small group get‐together. Estimated 
cost for these improvements is $150,000. 
 
With its close proximity to the Community Center, the Enhanced Gardens will also be a 
desirable location for seniors and other facility patrons wishing to enjoy the sights and 
solitude of the area. The proposed restroom will not only serve this site, but also the 
skate park and other future use areas in the Civic Center complex. 
 
CONCLUSION 
Staff is aware of the balance between the priorities of the CCPTF report and the fiscal 
responsibilities entrusted by Troy taxpayers. The decision not to construct a refrigerated 
ice rink based on the proposal for a privately‐funded ice rink at the Pavilions of Troy 
development reflects that trust. 
 
Staff will continue to strive toward the goals identified in the CCPTF report and absent 
objection from Council, will proceed with implementation of the design elements for the 
Enhanced Garden area as illustrated in the site plan attached to this report.  
 
 
Prepared by:  Jeff Biegler, Superintendent of Parks 
 
 
 
 

Attachment:  Site Plan and Key 
     







      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

December 17, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted      

 

campbellld
Text Box
K-01



      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

December 17, 2007 
Back-Up Documentation 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

L-1 No Closed Session Requested      

 

campbellld
Text Box
L-01


	AGENDA: December 17, 2007
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	a) Special Tribute to the City of Troy from State Representative Marty Knollenberg and State Senator John Pappageorge – Safest City in Michigan
	b) Service Commendation – David Waller


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Request for Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – Seco Tools, Inc., 2805 Bellingham, Troy MI 48083
	C-2 Request to Consider Granting an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to Seco Tools, Inc., 2805 Bellingham, Troy MI 48083
	C-3 Rezoning Application – Proposed Rite Aid Pharmacy Development, North Side of Long Lake, East Side of Rochester Road, Section 11 – B-1 to B-2 (File Number Z-729)

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Alcohol Sales on Golf Courses
	D-2 Appointments to Boards and Committees

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Planning Commission
	E-2  Bid Waiver – Purchase of Additional In-Car Video Systems
	E-3  Traffic Committee Recommendations – November 28, 2007
	E-4 Addendum #1 to Charnwood Hills Phase 1 Chip Seal Contract 07-4 for Charnwood Phase 2 Chip Seal
	E-5 Rejection of Bids for Contract 07-9 – Weir Control Structure Project – Section 4
	E-6 Proposed City of Troy Precinct Boundary Alterations and Relocations
	E-7 Limousine Permit Revocation Appeal – Nautical Mile Transportation
	E-8 Goodman Investments, LLC

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	F-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public
	F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted
	F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 07-8 – Square Lake, Livernois to Rochester and John R at Mt. Vernon Water Main Replacement – Project No. 06.503.5 and 07.503.5
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Architectural Services for the Troy Museum and Historic Village
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: US Communities Cooperative Purchasing Program – Landscape Structures, Inc.
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Audit Services
	e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles

	F-5 Acceptance of Fireman’s Fund Insurance Company Grant
	F-6 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement
	F-7 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement for John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #33 –Sidwell #88-20-02-427-007 – Kinette A. Bayliss
	F-8 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement for John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #68B –Sidwell #88-20-01-151-047 – Mark and Elizabeth Abro
	F-9 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Right-of-Way and a Permanent Easement for Water Main, Section 21 – Sidwell #88-20-21-426-012 – ESC Associates, LLC
	F-10 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Right-of-Way and a Permanent Easement for Water Main, Section 21 – Sidwell #88-20-21-426-009 – Livernois Properties, LLC
	F-11 Request for Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #76 – Sidwell #88-20-01-108-018 – Hana Rrapi
	F-12 Allocation of 2008 Tri-Party Program Funds for County Road Improvements in Troy
	F-13 Kocenda v. Troy et. al.

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	G-2 Green Memorandums: None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Historic District Study Committee/Final – September 4, 2007
	Youth Council/Final – September 26, 2007
	Election Commission/Final – October 1, 2007
	Historic District Study Committee/Final – October 2, 2007
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – November 1, 2007
	Historic District Study Committee/Final – November 6, 2007
	Planning Commission/Final – November 13, 2007
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – November 20, 2007
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – November 27, 2007
	Youth Council/Draft – November 28, 2007
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – December 4, 2007
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – December 6, 2007
	Election Commission/Draft – December 7, 2007

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of November, 2007
	City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – November 30, 2007

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks to Mayor Schilling from Bob Ottaway, President Bloomfield Woods Condominium Association Regarding the Assistance Received from the Troy Fire Department
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Nelson from Thomas Burke Regarding the Outstanding Service Provided by Lt. Janusz Bora
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Beatrice Smits Regarding the Compassion and Support Received from the Troy Police Department and Legal Staff
	Letter of Thanks to Bill Huotari from Tim and Anna Backers Regarding the Assistance from Jennifer Lawson and the Engineering Staff during the Widening of Crooks Road

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Communication from Alexia Gallaher, NFL Youth Football Fund Regarding a Grant of $1,000.00 to Troy Parks and Recreation for the 2007 NFL Local Agency Grant Program
	J-7  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding the Re-greening of Troy Program
	J-8  Communication from Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding Civic Center Priority Task Force Development Update

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT

	Reset: 
	Check Box4: 
	0: 
	0: no

	1: 
	0: Yes

	2: 
	0: no

	3: 
	0: no

	4: 
	0: no


	Text1: 
	0: 0
	1: 6014028
	2: 6014028

	Check Box5: Yes
	Text2: 
	0: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	6: 
	7: 
	8: 
	9: 
	10: 


	Check Box6: Yes
	Check Box7: no
	Check Box8: no
	Check Box9: no
	Check Box10: no
	Check Box11: no
	Check Box12: no
	Check Box13: no
	Check Box14: no
	Check Box15: no
	official: 
	name: Leger A (Nino) Licari, City Assessor



